ACTION
REQUIRED

AGENDA

All ltems are for discussion and possible action,
Perquimans County Board of Commissioners
Mesting Room at Perquimans County Library
September 2, 2025
7:00 p.m.

. Callto Order
. Prayer & Pledge
it f,- Approval of Agenda

V¢ Consent Agenda
{Consant items as follows willbe adopted with a single motion, second and vote, unfess a roguest
for removal of an item or items is made by a Commigsloner or Commissfoners.}

A, Approval of Minutes August 4, 2025, Regular Meeting and August 18, 2025 Regular Work Session
{cancelled),

Tax Refund & Tax Release Approvais
G, Personnel Matters

1. Appainiment. Athletic Program Supervisor

2. Appointment: PT/F EMT / Fire Inspector |

3. Appointment: Telacommunicator i

4, Appointment Non-Certified Telecommunicator

5. Appoiniment: Non-Certified Telecommunicatar (2)
6. Resignation: Cerlified Deputy

7. Resignation: Administrative Assistant

8. Resignation: Social Worker IA&T

9. Resignation: Cerlified Telecommunlcater
10.Resignation: Certifiad Telecommunicator
11.Remaoval from Roater: PT/FI Non-Certified Telecommunicator
12.Merit Increase: Social Worker li

13.Merit Increass: IMC Supervisor |l

14.Marit increase: PT/F] AEMT (2)

15, 3tep Increase: Social Worker

16.5tep Increase: Cerfified Deputy

=

B. Miscellaneous Documents:
k 1. Resolulion Authorizing the Removal of Public Records for Repair (2)

V. introduction of New Employees / Recognition of Service

NO ACTION 1. 811: Allen Foy

REQUIRED

FOSSIBLE
ACTION
LEQUIRED

NQ
ACTION
tEQUIRED

2. DSS: Bryhbanna Midgette
3. Shariff: Victor Fesperman — 20 years of service

VL Scheduled Appointments

1. Rhonda Repanshek 700 pam.
2. 708 pm,

Vil [ Commissioner's Concerns/Committee Reports
A,

B.

NO . .
ACTION VIIL Old Business

LEQUIREDR

e
L A.  Updates from County Manager



X, New Business
ACTION A, Frank Heath — Shoreline Slabilization Agreamant
REQUIRED B.  Brandon Shoaf — Salary Study Contract
X Unscheduled Appointments/Public Comments
(If yau wish to address the Board, please state your name for the record prior to speaking)
NG
ACTION ™% A
REQUIRED B.
C.
XI. | Close
ACTION
tEQUIRED
b T nir ettt R Tk bttt * HiSLect - LAt LE Ao R E B LR o LAt e LR R T b LA R R L R e L= f o
an.apen’
(After the Closed Session, the Board is subject to return to Open Session and may take
- action as needed on any items discussed during the closed session.)
ACTION ‘
EOUIRED KI!.‘"’LAdjnurnment

FOR INFORMATION ONLY:

»

N.C. Forest Setvice Annual Report for Perquimans  County

DEPARTMENT HEAD REPORT:

YY¥YY¥YY¥YYYyY

Flat Log

Building nspectors Report

Code Erdorcerment Report

Enforced Collsctions Report
Sheniff's Office Report

811 Call Volume Report

COMMITTEE WRITTEN REPORTS;

S



NOTES FROM THE COUNTY MANAGER
September 2, 2025
7:00 pim.

CONSENT AGENDA NOTES
{Consent lems as follows will be adopted with & single motion, second and vole,
unless & request for rernoval fiom the Consent Agenda is heard from a Commissionar)

. Enclosures: ltems included on the Consent Agenda are enclosed,
i you wish to discuss any of these matters, please malke that request dyring the meeting.

A. Enclosures: Approval of Minutes August 4, 2025, Regular Meeting and August 18, 2025 Regular Work Session
(cancealled),

B. Enclosures: Tax Refund / Release Approvals - see aftached tisting
C. Enclosures: Personnel Matters

Dept Employee Nome | Employee Entployie Jab THle | Grade/ Mew Effechive
Status Step Balary Date
. g T S Athletic Program . "

Recreation Derrick Page FT Hirc Su;mrvisc;r &4/7 $43,279 DO/2XA025
" ] . —— PT/F1 BMT / Fire -
BEMS Robert Reed 11 PT/FT Hire Inspector 1 67/5 $22.98Me | OS/01/2004

A , S Certifted : g |
ol1 Morgan Story FT Hire Telseommanicaor {1 a6/3 P28 | 09401/2025
o1 Isabel Jarvis FT Hire o Non-Certified G0/1 | $18.26/Mr | 09/01/2025
[elccommunicator
s Mye T LG Mon-Certified .
11 Andrea Myers PT/FL Hire Telecommunicator 60/t 51826/ | 09/01/20615
911 Sersh Gallop | PT/Fl Hire  Non-Certified 8O/ | $18.26Mr | 090172025
Telecommunicator
Stertlf Ryun Cappel Resipnation Cartified Depuly i i i 08/12/2025
5 Macy Cappei Restgmation | Adminisirative Assistant O8/13/2025
DES Shanpe Christian Roesignation Social Workar IA&T 08/15/2025
o1l Charity Geho Resimation i1 Telacommunicator I NRAGZ0Z3
a1 Alysea Ratcliff Resignation | ¥7 Telecommunicator | 08/27/2025
931 | Rethryn Touchton | Removallom 4y non-Cort TC 08/1512025
] Kay Hall Merit N ‘
&3 Increase Social Worker I1 67/10 354,013 090172028
- - "

DSS Pamela Midgatt hmf;;a IMC Supervisor 11 677 | $50,187 | 09/01/2025
EMS Sophia Wright et PT/FI EMT 642 | $18.72m | 09172025
EMS Tabitha Martin et PT/F1 EMT 6172 | $18.720r. | 090172025
D58 Melizss Harris Step Increase Sovin] Worker 1T 6972 S48 520 09/01/2023
Bheril Brian Grepary Step Inerease Lertified Deputy 68/7 §52 448 D9/01/202 5

D. Miscetlaneous Documents:
1. Resolution Authorizing the Removal of Public Records for Rapair (2)

V, The following introduction of new employees and recognition of service will be done:

Introduction of New Employees/Recognition of Service;
Department Employee Employee Effective
Tead Name Jub Title Date
Jonathan Nixon Allen Foy Certified Teleoommunicator T 08/01/2025
Angela Jordan Bryhana Midgette Social Worker 17 = HI = JA&T 08/01/2025
Sheriff Shetby White Victor Fesperman Sergeant: 20 years of Service 09/08/2025

VI Scheduled Appointments:
A. Rhonda Repanshek will present a request for a motion to stther approve or deny a flag <ot subdivision deed-of-gift as
propased by Mr. and Mrs, Howell to their daughter, Shannon Coston, combined with a parcel from her uncle, Jacab
Wills. Saee three (3) attachments for explanation and raview,

VIl CGommissionars Concerns:

X, New Business
A.  County Manager Frank Heath will presant the attached agreement from Moffatt and Nichof 1o provide professlionsl
engineering work for Shoreline Stabillzation projects at the Marine Industrial Park. He will ask for the Boards approval,
with the money coming cut of the Economic Davelopment Fund,



B.Assistant County Manager Brandon Shoaf will presentthe attached agreementwith Evergreen Solufions, LLC for a salary
stuely for approval by the Board,



WA - Page 3

REGULAR MEETING
August 4, 2025
700 p.m.
The Perguimans County Board of Commissioners met in a regular meeting on Monday, August 4,

2025, at 7:00 p.m. in the Perguimans County Library located at 514 . Church Street, Hertford, NG
27944,

MEMBERE PRESENT. Wallace E. Nelson, Chairman Charles Woadard, Vice Chairman
Timathy J. Corprew James W, Ward
Kathryn M. Traiber Joseph W. Hoffler

MEMBERS ABSENT

OTHERS PRESENT. Brandon Sheaf, Assistant County Manager  Hackney High, County Attorneay
Rebecca T. Corprew, Clerk to the Board

Chairman Nelson called the meeting o order. Charles Woodard gave the invocation, and the
Chairrman led the Pledge of Allegiance,

AGENDA

Chairman Nelson stated that the Agenda was at their seats and asked if there were any additions
or corrections o the amended Agenda. There being none, Chairman Nelson asked for a motion to
approve the Agenda as presented. James W. Ward made a motion to approve the Agenda as presented,
The motion was seconded by Kathryn M. Treiber and unanimousty approved by the Board.

CONSENT AGENDA

Chairman Neison asked if there were any items that the Board wished to remove fram the Consent
Agenda to discuss, There being none, Jamas W, Ward made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda.
The motion was seconded by Kathryn M. Treiher and unanimously approved by the Board,

A Approval of Minutes: The minutes of July 7, 2025, Reguiar Meeting and July 21, 2025, Work Session
{cancelled} were approved,

B. Tax Refund ! Release Approvais:
Tax Reltnds (Perguininns Countyy:

Christing Twing amseveone PP s101.19
Owner exchanged one plate for another. Tases had already been paid on exchanged plate, Accouni Neo 81763336

Adum Larn Lassiter 8293.43
S0kl Vehicle, Th-month refund. Aceount No, $2718743

T IIETE N T e b e e e e A LA A ol b S92
Sold vehiele- 1 -month refund. Account Mo, 78323368,

Shutnnon Marie XBQUes - -—mmrrmmrrnme e nr s s v s s S143.68
Vehicle Totaled. 9-nonth refund, Aveonnt No, 83607030,

Bobli Nicoke Fartwell Fr s 130,490
Sttus Brror, Agcount Mo, 86389338

Maureen Frances MoNHT rmseessunes b e e e e e e e ———— —— §172.18

Sold vehicle-T-month refund. Account Mo, 6976984

¢.  Personnel Matters: The following personnel matters were approved by the Board:

Bept Employee Nane Employer Emplovee Jab Title Grade/ New Effective
. Stulug =t Sakary Date

DES Rrvhana Midpeue “ Hire soeial Worker IA&T G741 F46.062.00 ABM12025

G11 Allen Foy ‘u Certifted Felecymm, 1) G672 (82044 Fhrg O8A42025

Water Armodd Whive | P Hirg Equipment Operitos MG H30.00/4 D8A1/2025

a1 Sundrs Bise Resirnmion P Telecomm, (37/25/H)25

1IIS Donna Vienshan Resianaiion F F] Paramedic § (H/25342025
D Bravden Clemens Regivnation P EMT 0812025

Agtonio Willinmg | Resignation Administrative Ofcer 1 0773172025

Zach Smith Remarval fiom Rosler PT/F Poramedie 8012025

Dremetrivs Stokley Termisvation Social Worker 1] 7182025

Teahna Nixon Termination Socinl Warker U {7423/2025

Rhismy Tycker Merit [neroise I Telecomm G2 | 1R TVhy | Q82025

Conrtney Eanpley Meril Ingrease T Felgeomm 6412 EL8.72My. ORAL2025

Marman Sy Muorit Inerense FT Teleconim (/3 L8 Behr, (RN 2025

Lisa Whidbee Meril Ingr P ARMT [S14%] 521.9%0r. (H/0) 2025




WA - Page 2

(W T Alyssa Williams | Mo increse ] Waler Clerk | Gile | SATARD | 08172025
Rec Aranda Eavdon 1 Meril Tierese Asdministrative Assiatant A0z | $38.167 OB /2028
‘‘‘‘‘ BN Joutisa Drew Slep Incregse 4 P T 1/ 5381 DBAN 2025
hI% Willim Wrish) Step fnerenss Clertilted Deputy (18413 Ll 760 O824

INTROUCTION OF NEW EMPLOYEES
Infroduciion of New Employees: The following new employees were introduced to the Board:

Department Employee ‘ Employee LEifective
Head Name dob Title Date
Jomuthan Nixon - EM Amancs iz LLARMT 04172025
1han Nixon - FM Maolly Miller Telecommunicalar 070172025 |

After the supervisor and employees made thelr comments, the Board welcomed them to Perquimans
County.

SCHEDULED APPOINTMENTS:

1. Bilt Jennings: Tax Administrator: Clerk Corprew stated that Mr. Jennings could not attend and
the collection percentage repert should be providad at the next meating.

2. Bobbie Lowe: Trilliurn: Mrs. Lowe presented the Annual Report for Perguimans County
concerning Triium haaith services in our county, Mrs, Lowe explained who Tritium is, what they do for
our residents, and how changes and new programs are benefiting our residents. The Board thankad
her for her dedication to Perquirnans County

COMMISSIONER'S CONCERNS/ICOMMITTEE REPORTS
Charles Wooednrd: Mr. Woodard provided the fetlowing Perguimas County Muscun repont for July 2025:

Visit - " Hhawrs Chpened; 67
FISTHS. e : o .
¢ ]i .J ) 371 00 Stuff: Kid Fley & (en While
SAbeST . 3710
: e Annal Repord for Angust 2024 — fuly 2025
fronations: ... 0,00 o ) '
Gwt, 5 howrs 472 pucals. 194949 tial revenue

TAdded to Muscum Collection:

Hogemade chitd’s elr 1902 Sears Rochuck Caalog

May 10,5908 News & Ohserver
Accomplished:
Museum Needs: More Space

Add sign on LIS 17 by-pass

Wallace Nelson: Chairman Nelson provided each member with a letter from the County of Dare, Office of
the Board of Commissioners reguesting participation in the establishmant of North Carglina Coastal
Counties Fisheries Coaliion. After explanation and discussion, it was the consensus of all Board
mambers o attend the first meeting and come back with discussion to see if this would be something
Perguimans County would continue to participate in. Timothy J. Corprew will be the Board's

representative for the upcoming meeting.

UPDATES FROM COUNTY MANAGER

Asgistant County Manager Shoaf presented the following updates: Mr. Shoaf visited MiTek in
Edenton. Company representatives explained their vision and how making the move to Perguimans will
benefit their business, Mr. Shoaf reported the receipt of the signed offer to purchase along with a check
for the earnest money. The lease agreement is in review currently, Mr. Shoaf reports that he has obtained
an updated bathymelry chart shawing the depths of the river and shared that with the MiTek staff during
tha visit.

Mr. Shoaf presented an offer from Electricities to partner with Perguimans County o create a
commercial for the Marine Park Basin, advertising its potential uses to businesses,

Mr. Shoaf will be speaking at the County Farm Bureau meeting soon and encourages the Board to
contact him if they have any specific topics they would like to see covered during that time,

Mr. Shoaf informed the Board that the previously presented SAMC contract was signed at a rate
of 3250/ per transport to assist in the move of patients from the old SAMC facility to the new facility.

NEW BUSINESS

A. Sale of Surplus Equipment on GovDeals: The bids ended on Monday, August 4, 2025, A
motion was made by Charies Woodard to approve the sale of these vehicles for the bid




VA, - Page 3

amounts as staled. The motion was seconded by Timothy J. Corprew and unanimously
approved by the Board.

Buyer Vehicle Date Sold_| Starting Bid | Sale Amount |
Jud Long 2014 Ford F150 ViN# 7774 | 08/04/205 | $500.00 202%.05
Brent MeKecuen | 6500 Power Pra Stryker | 08/04/2025 530 §700.00
Stretcher

A NCSHP VIPER Radio Equipment Jonathan Nixen requested authorization for the
Emergency Services Director to work with the NC State Highway Patrol to facilitate the srmooth
transftion of  equipment fromm  County  ownership/maintenance o NCSHP
ownarship/maintenance. A motion was made o grant authorization to the ES Director by
Timathy J. Corprew. The motion was seconded by Kathryn M. Treiber and unanimously
approved by the Board.

B. PSAP Mutual Ald: Jonathan Nixon requested authorization to enter into an agreement with
Pasquotank County for Mutual Aid allowing Pasquatank County PSAP and Perquimans PSAP
(Public Service Answearing Point) to work together in the event of a major disaster. The
agreerment was included in the packet for review by the Board. A motion was made by Charles
Woodard to authorize a2 mutual aid agreament between Parguimans and Pasquotank counfies
PSAP's. The motion was seconded by Joseph W. Hoffler and unanimously approved by the
Board.

C. €M at Risk Agreerment: Jonathan Nixon presented an updated CM at Risk Agresment with
AR Chesson for Perquimans-Gates 911 Expansion Project for action by the Board, requesting
authorization to sign the updated contract with AR Chesson as presentsd by staff and
approved by the Architect. This document is a supplement fo the initial contract signed
1/31/2025 by the County Manager. The project remaing on budget and on schedule. Email
received by County Manager Frank Heath on 7/30/2025 delegating authority o Jonathan
Nixon to sign the contract, A motion was made by Joeseph W. Hoffier to authorize Mr. Nixon
to sign the contract. The motion was seconded by James W. Ward and unanimously agproved
by the Board.

. ES Building Roof Replacement: Jonthan Nixon presented the contract for the winning
bidder of the roof replacement project for the Emergency Services Building. Mr. Nixon
explained that the conftract is coming in under budget ailowing room for any additional
expenses that may arise once the roof begins to be removed. A motion was made by James
W. Ward to approve the contract as presented. The miction was seconded by Charles
Waoodard and unanimously approved by the Board.

E. Recreation Advisory Board Application: Assistant Gounty Manager Brandon Shoaf
reguested aclion from the Board regarding the application received from Mr. Andrew
Ravenscraft fo serve on the Recreation Advisory Board. After reviewing the application, Mr.
Shoaf stated that he felt Mr. Ravenscraft would be a good candidate for this role, A motion
was made by Timathy J. Corprew to approve the appointment. The mation was seconded by
Kathryn M. Treiber and unamnimously approved by the Board.

PUBLIC COMMENTS
Thera were no public comments made.

CLOSED SESSION. TO DISCUSS ACQUISITION OF REAL PROPERTY AND_CLOSED
SESSION MINUTES

Chairman Nelson stated that, pursuant to N.C.G.S. §143-318-11(5) the Board went into Closed
Sessian to discuss acquisition of real property and to approve the Closed Session minutes.
On motion made by Timothy J. Corprew, seconded by James W. Ward, to go into the Closed Session.
The motion was unanimously appraved to go into Closed Session,

The Closed Session was adjourned, and the Regular Meeting reconvened on motion made by
Charles Ward, seconded by James W. Ward, and unanimously approved by the Board,

No action was required from the Closed Session.

ADJOURNMENT




VA - Page 4
Chairman Nelson asked f there were any further comments or business to discuss. There being
none, the Regular Meeting was adjourned at 8,04 p.m. on maotion made by Kathryn M. Treiher seconded
by Timothy J. Cerprew and unanimously approved by the Board.

Waltace E. Nelson, Chairman

Clark to the Board

LR B A R R B R R O



LU BAMREES SR THdE DU EAEETEE ety

August 23, 2025

Tax Refunds: (Perquimans)

Vt‘hu‘le suld '7-mﬂn1h refund.
Account#: 83106517

‘;b!d vehlcln, 18-month refund,
Account#: 779879901

Vehmle tntéleti; '5'-'m'mith ref und. ”
Account#: 75211528

Vehmlc wld Smmunt
Accounti: 58545243

Incm mct square fmmge since built (1999)
Bitled for a $328,100 asscssment.
Correction 5278,400

Account#: 253929 Year 2020

Incurmct squam footage since bmlt ( 999)
Billed for a $328,100 assessment.
Correction $278,400

Account#: 255929 Year 2021

$303.17
Incorl ect squa:e footage since built (1999)
Billed for a $328,100 assessment,

Correction 5278,400

Account#; 235919 Year 2022

Aldrich & Ma ‘épal $318.08
Incorrect square footage since built (1999)
Biiled for a $328,100 assessment.

Correction $278,400

Accounti: 255929 Year 2023

Aldri Aary Krepal 382,72
Incurrcu sq uare footage since built (1 )99)
Billed for a 5467,100 assessment.

Correction $393,500

Account#: 255929 Year 2024

Tax Releases: (Perquimans)

‘ 18.810:00
Fn ror when num be: of Sotid Waste Fees was
being entered. 100 was entered; should have
been 1.

Acconnt#: 0265871

.8,

Page

1



EMPLOYMENT ACTION FORW DATE SUBMITTED: ﬁ}f’KE 25

COUNTY OF PERQUIMANS
STATUS: NEW EMPLOYEEPROBATIONARY PERIOQUMERIT RAISE

wanies Lereick Page SOC. SEC. NO.:
POSITION; b ledo Tbmc; g Z{W’( Visor El}f%"—*"ﬁ:hHﬁpﬂfiﬁr*ﬂ"‘tﬁ}ﬁ

GRADE: {(3""% STEP: i SALARY: @? ;“j ’7 Cf |

URRENT: GRADE:

[:I JOB PEREGRMAMNCE EVALUATION

YEAR 1 p 3 4 (CIRCLE)
L] _ DATE OF SUCCESSFUL COMPLETION OF PROBATIONARY PERIOD AND
T g " RECOMMENDATION BY DEPARTMENT FOR PERMANENT STATUS.

GRADE: __ STEP: _ SALARY:

L DATE OF ANNUAL EVALUATION AND RECOMMENDATION FOR STEP

Diate RAISE., (YEAR 7 3 4}

GRADE: __STEP,  SALARY:

[] DATE OF EMPLOYEE TERMINATION DUE TO UNSUCCESSEUL PROBA.

VRNTRHHAL

Pate TIONARY PERIOD,

(] _ RECOMMENDATION AND EFFECTIVE DATE FOR EMPLOYEE MERIT RAISE,
ot GRADE: STEP: SALARY: _

THE ABOVE NAMED COUNTY EMPLOYEE 18 BEING RECOMMENDED FOR THE INCREASE IN
SALARY LISTED ABOVE BASED ON HIS/HER WORK PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

COMPLETED: PER THE COUNTY PERSONNEL POLICY.
. EEE T DUE TR RURE L LR 2t EUE D
DER QTMEN T REGDMMENDATIQN COUNTY MANAG ROV AL
[l —

t:)mjﬁz. !/ ’ti 15 M&TE: "ﬂ‘/z‘?/Z‘J/

FINANCE OFFICER

DATE:

Revised 7/05



: -;..F'ER THE CQUNT‘( PERSDNNEL POLIGY,

i\f'(:-' - Fﬂagea -k

EIVIPL, mrw:mmr‘mm\; FORM. R DﬁTEEUBM(T‘Eﬁ _______ ) sm,fmm

| o  GOUNTY OF p&mmwm o
S TATUS NEW EMPLD‘-’EF!PF{OBATIQNAW{ Ff:ﬂmmmam@@c L)V
| NAME: _ Rmhermem W mc SEC.NO

'PE')SFE'!G)N F‘zxrtﬂ“lmu F‘dMn &MTIHM lnsnoctml “ ‘ DEPT

* NEW EMF‘LDYLE i:FFk:C‘T!\.-'E:E mm"r: %ptembar 1, 2025
‘orape, b3 stee: ﬁwmmmﬂv dan. % ‘#a"cwftf IR
ENDING !Z#ATE:f OF PWBA;EQNARVPER@D“"'smmmmbem,zn?a Lo

cumztﬁm_r;mbﬁg | - BALARY:
(1 gop PEHF’GRMAN(‘JE wmummm o

"‘V&AR ’11 .a :; L4 (cmcu_) R A o
‘f 1 ,_ ‘DATE OF auc;uaswuh ccmm_r-mm oF PROBATIGNARY BERIOD: AND
pay F!EGCJMMENDA TIONBY. m:MRTMENT FOR PERMANENT :‘:ﬂ"ATuﬁ B
R GRADE, STEP:_ . USALARYE
BN, DATEOF ANNUAL EVALUATION AND REC:EJMMENE)ATION mm m"EP
-{;ngjga;__- " RAISE. m:m 2 3 4 AR o

QRAD{L BT{”P' o SAL ARY

Ly ATE OF ammmm TERMi’NATION DUE T c} uwsuccrz&m-m. PRQE’AA« -
T:owmv PER#QD B SR N .

Cmel

S CDade -

| mmcammmvcmmwumm L

F’EQQMMENDA; , ON AND -EFFEGTWE [}ATE F‘OR EMPLUYEE;MERW RNE‘»E’. .

‘D’ﬁlé Gmm«_ — . STEP: _ - BALARY:

. .THE AEQVE NAMEB .‘CDUNW EMF‘LG”Y*EEL iﬂ BEING RECQMMENDED FDR THE INCREABE IN SALARY
CLISTED ABOVE' BASED ON MISHER WORK PERFQRMANG!‘: EVALUAT!QN C'-CJM YR '

- ‘. e ‘*A"A"!ri*#w*-‘**ymw*.uuq* “ . . <L a -
: tZ}EPAR NT‘ _.MMENE}ATIQM GOU ‘TV MANAG'RAPPROVAL
S e

"m W/;r /,15

D

}JAT% 5’/ ,Zﬁ/ .35'

.;jFINANEE wmm S

A

wwe - Revised 705 -




W, - Page 2

EMPLOYMENT ACTION FORM DATE SUBMITTED: 8/28/2075

COUNTY OF PERQUIMANS
STATUS: NEW EMPLOYEE/PROBATIONARY PER!DDIMERIT?&

o

=]
5 =\
NAME: _ Morgan Story S0C, SEG.NO,: ANl 2 N el
POSITION: Fult-Time Certified Telecommunicator i DEPT. M1 e
K NEW EMPLOYEE EFFECTIVE DATE: 9/1/2025
GRADE: 6. STEP:_ .3 SALARY: $20.94 Hourly

ENDING DATE OF PROBATIONARY PERICD:
B T B e
CURRENT: GRADE: . e

L.l JOB PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

YEAR 1 2 3 4 (CIRCLE)
'l DATE OF SUCGESSFUL COMPLETION OF PROBATIONARY PERIOD AND
Dt RECOMMENDATION BY DEPARTMENT FOR PERMANENT STATUS.
GRADE: STEP: SALARY:
£l RATE OF ANNUAL EVALUATION AND RECOMMENDATION FOR STEP
Diste RAISE, (YEAR 2 3 4)

GRADE: STEP: BALARY:

(] DATE OF EMPLOYEE TERMINATION DUE TO UNSUCCESSFUL PROBA-
[rata TIONARY PERIOD.

] DATE OF EMPLOYEE RESIGNATION
Date

(] RECOMMENDATION AND EFFECTIVE DATE FOR EMPLOYEE MERIT RAISE,

frate GRADE; STER. SALARY:

T AL gt uramrurd

THE ABOVE NAMED COUNTY EMPLOYEE IS BEING RECOMMENDED FOR THE INCREASE IN SALARY
LISTED ABOVE BABED ON HISIMER WORK PERFORMANGE EVALUATION COMPLETED:
PER THE COUNTY PERSONNEL POLICY,

WA b g o e v e e e e o

DEPARTM;NT EONMENDATION co%v mnnm;@ﬂmp;wm.

mﬂ—;/ ) 37/}5/2«_5“ ryws.- 4‘3/ .‘éﬁ/ 25

FINANCE OFFICER

DATE:

Revised 7/05



‘ W.C. - FPage 3
EMPLOYMENT ACTION FORM DATE SUBMITTED: 8/28/2025

COUNTY OF PERQUIMANS

STATUS: NEW EMPLOYEE/PROBATIONARY PERIDWM?&@EP
SOC. 8EC. NO.: @ O

NAME: |sabel Jarvis

FPOSITION:  Full-Time Non-Certified Telecommunicator DEPT.: 941

X NEW EMPLOYEE EFFECTIVE DATE: September 1, 2028
GRADE:___ 80 STEP: 1 SALARY: __$18.26 Hourly
ENDING DATE OF PROBATIONARY PERIOD: _ September 1, 2026

CURRENT: GRADE: STEP: SALARY:

[l JOB PERFORMANGE EVALUATION
YEAR 1 2 3 4 . (CIRGLE)
L DATE OF SUCCESSFUL COMPLETION OF PROBATIONARY PERIOD AND
Date RECOMMENDATION BY DEPARTMENT FOR PERMANENT STATUS.
GRADE: STEP: SALARY!
[ DATE OF ANNUAL EVALUATION AND RECOMMENDATION FOR STEP
Date RAISE. (YEAR 2 3 4)
GRADE: STEP: SALARY:
D DATE OF EMPLOYEE TERMINATION DUE TO UNSUCCESSFUL PROBA-
Date TIONARY PERIOD.

L DATE OF EMPLOYEE RESIGNATION
Date

[] RECOMMENDATION AND EFFECTIVE DATE FOR EMPLOYEE MERIT RAISE,

Date GRADE:; STEP: SALARY;

THE ABOVE NAMED COUNTY EMPLOYEE 13 BEING RECOMMENDED FOR THE INCREASE IN SALARY
LISTED ABOVE BASED ON HIS/HER WORK PERFORMANCE EVALUATION COMPLETED:
PER THE COUNTY PERSONNEL POLICY.

e e e e e e i o e v o A de o e

PEPARTMENT RECOMM ON COUNTY MANAGER APPROVAL
£l ami Lt

D%E: 52@/&5" E:JATE: ﬁ/ :M / 25

FINANCE OFFICER

DATE:

Revised 7/05



Fage

V.G, -
EMPLOYMENT ACTION FORM DATE SUBMITTED: 8/28/2025

COUNTY OF PERQUIMANS
STATUS: NEW EMPLOYEE/PROBATIONARY PERIODIME}[(I\)I?A

D)iRAY4

NAME: __ Andrea Myers SOC. SEC. NO.:_\"7
POSITION: Part-Time Fill-in Non-Cettified Telecommunicator DEPT,; 911

X NEW EMPLOYEE EFFECTIVE DATE: September 1, 2025

GRADE: 60 STEP; SALARY: __ $18.26 Hourly
ENDING DATE OF PROBATIONARY PERICD: E‘:eptember 1,2026

CURRENT: GRADE: STEP; SALARY:
[l JOB PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
YEAR 1 2 3 4 (CIRCLE)
{1 DATE OF SUCCESSFUL COMPLETION OF PROBATIONARY PERIOD AND
Date RECOMMENDATION BY DEPARTMENT FOR PERMANENT STATUS.
GRADE: STEP: SALARY:
[l DATE OF ANNUAL EVALUATION AND RECOMMENDATION FOR STEP
Date RAISE. {YEAR 2 3 &)
GRADE: STEP: SALARY:
L DATE QF EMPLOYEE TERMINATION DUE TO UNSUCCESSFUL PROBA-
Date TIONARY PERIOD. ‘

[l DATE OF EMPLOYEE RESIGNATION

] RECOMMENDATION AND EFFECTIVE DATE FOR EMPLOYEE MERIT RAISE.

Date GRADE: STEP: SALARY:

THE ABOVE NAMED COUNTY EMPLOYEE IS BEING RECOMMENDED FOR THE INCREASE IN SALARY
LISTED ABOVE BASED ON HIS/HER WORK PERFORMANCE EVALUATION COMPLETED:
PER THE COUNTY PERGONNEL POLICY,

Frirdkhkkkhthdhkhhkhriihy

DEPART’M& RECOMMENDATION COUNTY MANAGER APPROVAL

DATE/ 5/ ,’{J’/ Z#L DATE g/ ow /.2.5'

FINANCE OFFICER

DATE:

Revised 7/05



}Vbt. - Page &
EVIPEOYMENT ACTION FORM : DATE SUBMITTED: 8/28/2025

COUNTY QF PERQUIMANS

STATUS: NEW EMPLOYEE/PROBATIONARY PERIDDIMET?WW é—ﬁwﬁ 7
AN E') (

NAME: Sarah Gallop S0C. SEC, NO.:
POSITION:Part-Time Fill-in_Non-Certified Telecommunicator DEPT.. __ 811

X NEW EMPLOYEE EFFECTIVE DATE:! _September 1. 20256
GRADE: &0 sSTEP: 1 SALARY: %18.26 Hourly
ENDING DATE OF PROBATIONARY PERIOD: _September 1. 2026

CURRENT: GRADE: STEP: SALARY:

1 JOB PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
YEAR 1 2 3 4 (CIRCLE)
n DATE OF SUCGESSFUL COMPLETION OF PROBATIONARY PERIOD AND
Oate RECOMMENDATION BY DEPARTMENT FOR PERMANENT STATUS.
GRADE:; STEP: SALARY;
1 DATE OF ANNUAL EVALUATION AND RECOMMENDATION FOR STEP
Date RAISE. (YEAR 2 3 4)
GRADE: STEP: SALARY:
C DATE OF EMPLOYEE TERMINATION DUE TO UNSUCCESSFUL PROBA-
Date TIONARY PERIOD.,

] DATE OF EMPLOYEE RESIGNATION

) RECONMMENDATION AND EFFECTIVE DATE FOR EMPLOYEE MERIT RAISE.

Date GRADE: STEP: SALARY:

THE ABOVE NAMED COUNTY EMPLOYEE IS BEING RECOMMENDED FOR THE INCREASE IN SALARY
LISTED ABOVE BASED ON HIS/HER WORK PERFORMANCE EVALUATION COMPLETED:
PER THE COUNTY PERSONNEL POLICY,

Hkhhbkdkdkhkhhkhkrkhhkh

DEPART ' RECOMMENDATION COUNTY MANAG ] R APF’RDVAL
N /w ' M{)\, Hoal !7}
DAJ[/E:/ 4 / ﬂ*f@f ok 9/2-‘7/ 25
FINANCE QFFICER
DATE:

Revised 7/05



WL - Pape 6

EMPLOYMENT ACTION FORIV DATE SUBMITTED: %’i 1325
COUNTY OF PEROLIMAMS
STATUS: NEW EMPLOYEE/PROBATIONARY PERIOCDMERI WRAL&E\ )
@T”Q‘ NI\
MAME: Ryan Cappsi . $0OC. BEC. NO.. \ =708 Wy

POSITION: Certified Deputy BEPT.: Sheriffs Office

[} NEW EMPLOYEE EFFECTIVE DATE:
GRADE: STEP: BALARY: _
ENDING DATE OF PROBATIONARY PERIQD:

CUR

i il

it e e e ey R e L T U P L o T s

RENT: GRADE: STEP, ALARY:

[} JOB PEREORMANCE EVALUATION
YEAR 1 2 3 4 (CIRCLE)
0o DATE OF SUCCESSFUL COMPLETION OF PROBATIONARY PERICD AND
Date RECOMMENDATION BY DEPARTMENT FOR PERMANENT STATUS,
GRADE: STEP: SALARY:
[ DATE OF ANNUAL EVALUATION AND RECOMMENDATION FOR STEP
Date RAISE. (YEAR 2 3 4)
GRADE: STEP: _____ SALARY:
L] DATE OF EMPLOYEE TERMINATION DUE TO UNSUCCESSFUL PROBA-
Data TIONARY PERIOD.

X 8-12-25 DATE OF EMPLOYEE RESIGNATION / RETIREMENT.
Date

] RECOMMENDATION AND EFFECTIVE DATE FOR EMPLOYEE MERIT RAISE,

Date GRADE: STEP: BALARY:

THE ABOVE NAMED COUNTY EMPLOYEE IS BEING RECOMMENDED FOR THE INCREASE N
SALARY LISTED ABOVE BASED ON HIS/HER WORK PERFORMANCE EVALUATION COMPLETED: —
PER THE COUNTY PERSONNEL POLICY.

AR L LT LIT IR ST 2

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION COUNTY MANAGER AFPROVAL
) Frake (1
DATE: g-/3-25 Mm: 5/ ﬁﬁ/ﬁﬁw

FINANCE OFFICER

DATE:

Revised 7/05



W, - Page 7

EMPLOYMENT ACTION FORM DATE SUBMITTED: B || > 22>

COUNTY OF PERQUIMANS
STATUS: NEW EMPLOYEE/PROBATIONARY I"ERIDDIMER}}“{LMR\?&E\\
/

p
'im { A i{}

NAME: Macey Cappel S0C, SEC. NO..». W07
POSITION: Administrative Assistant DEPT.: Sheriffs Office

iy

il
et

[} NEW EMPLOYEE EFFECTIVE DATE:

GRADE: STEP: SALARY:
IONARY PERIOD:
CURRENT: GRADE: L STEP: __ SALARY:
[ JOB PERFORMANGE EVALUATION
YEAR 1 2 3 4 (GIRCLE)
i1 DATE OF SUCCESBFUIL COMPLETION OF PROBATIONARY PERIOD AND
Date RECOMMENDATION BY DEPARTMENT FOR PERMANENT STATUS.
GRADE: STEP: SALARY:
L DATE OF ANNUAL EVALUATION AND RECOMMENDATION FOR STEP
Date RAISE, (YEAR 2 3 4}

GRADE: STEP: _ _ SALARY:
U . DATE OF EMPLOYEE TERMINATION DUE TO UNSUCCESSEUL PROBA.-
Date TIONARY PERIOD.

X 81325 DATE OF EMPLOYEE RESIGNATION / RETIREMENT.
Dale

L RECOMMENDATION AND EFFECTIVE DATE FOR EMPLOYEE MERIT RAISE,

Dale GRADE: STEP: SALARY:

THE ABOVE NAMED COUNTY EMPLOYEE 13 BEING RECOMMENDED FOR THE INCREASE N
SALARY LISTED ABOVE BASED ON HIS/HER WORK PERFORMANCE EVALUATION COMPLETED: __
PER THE COUNTY PERSONNEL POLICY.

WA oA ey e e ek e

DEPAWT/ OMMENDATIO COUNTY MANAGER, APPROVAL
e y "__,_,r‘”_ T £ :‘ £ i A
pate: 5~ 13- 2 ¢ MTE: ﬁ/ M/fZﬁ“’

FINANCE OFFICER

DATE:

Revised 7/05



W.. - Page 8

EMPLOYMENT ACTION FOBM DATE SUBMITTED: August 14, 2025

COUNTY OF PERQUIMANS

STATUS: NEW EMPLOYEE/PROBATIONARY PERIUU!MEWT F{MSE kT

S OE
NAME: SBhanae Christian S0C. SEC. NGO & m f“; Q) LL“
POSITION: _Social Worker AT DEPT,: Social Services

NEW EMPLOYEE EFFECTIVE DATE:
GRADE: STEP: SALARY:

ENDING DATE (Z)F PRDBATI(}N;&RY PERIOD:

CURREN"! GRADE: STEF’: SALARY

LT —

[} uos PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
YEAR 1 2 3 4 {CIRCLE)

D DATE OF SUCCESSFUL COMPLETION OF PROBATIONARY PERIOD AND

Date RECOMMENDATION BY DEPARTMENT FOR PERMANENT STATUS,
GRADE: _ STEP: _____ SALARY:
] DATE OF ANNUAL EVALUATION AND RECOMMENDATION FOR STEP
Date RAISE, (YEAR 2 34
GRADE: __STEM: SALARY:

X 8/15/2025 bate OF EMPLOYEE RESIGNATION,

iaie

RECOMMENDATiQN AND EFFECTWE IZ‘ATE FOR EMPLOYEE MERIT FQAISE

Date GRADE: _____ STEP: SALARY:

THE ABOVE NAMED COUNTY EMPLOYEE IS BEING RECOMMENDED FOR THE INCREASE IN
SALARY LISTED ABOVE BASED ON HIS/HER WORK PERFORMANCE BVALUATION
COMPLETED: PER THE COUNTY PERSONNEL POLICY,

ot e Byt o bl e el

COUNTY MANAGER [RPPROVAL
K€ 387200 SPY'N b Yool
DATgum 14, 2025 Mre: 8 / 28 /2'5/

FINANCE OFFICER

DATE:

Revised 7/05



EMIPLOYMENT ACTION FORM DATE SUBMITTED: _ Aulbr a;ad0ege 9

COUNTY OF PERGUIMANS
STATUS: MNEW EMPLOYEE/PROBATIONARY PERIOD/NMERIT RAISE

Q "»if’f‘wzaﬂ”"’/

NAME:  Charity Geho S0C, BEC. MO .
B Lt

POSITION: Full-Time Telecommunicator | DERT.; 91‘1

] NEW EMPLOYEE BEFECTIVE DATE:

GRADE: STEP: SALARY:
ENDING Dﬁﬂ‘tﬂ OF PROBATIONARY PERIOD:

CURRENT: GRADE: ______ STEP: sm ARY:

'l OB PERFORMANGE EVALUATION
YEAR 1 2 3 4 (CIRCLE)
D DATE OF SUCCESSFUL COMPLETION OF PROBATIONARY PERIOD AND
Dt RECONMENDATION BY DERPARTMENT FOR PERMANENT STATUS.
GRADE: _ STEP: BALARY:
Lo DATE OF ANNUAL EVALUATION AND RECOMMENDATION FOR BTEP
Date RAISE, (YEAR 2 3 &
GRADE: STEP: __ SALARY:
() DATE OF EMPLOYEE TERMINATION DUE TO UNSUCCESSFUL PROBA-
Date TIONARY PERIOD,

)4 8/6/2025 paTE OF EMPLOYEE RESIGNATION
Drale:

i RECOMMENDATION AND EFFECTIVE DATE FOR EMPLOYEE MERIT RAISE.

Date GRADE: _  STEP:__ o SALARY

THE ABOVE NAMED COUNTY EMPLOYEE IS BEING RECOMMENDED FOR THE INCREASE IN BALARY
LISTED ABQVE BASED ON HIS/HER WORK PERFORMANCE EVALUATION COMPLETED:
PER THE COUNTY PERSONNEL POLICY.

et e e e WG ATk ek

DEPART im‘ AES MMENDATIDN COUNTY MANAGER APPROVAL
PATION _
***** > dm b Heath
mw./ ‘3”/ ﬂ/ e r:m*rg 8 / cé;ﬁ 25
FINANCE OFFICER
DATE:

Revisad 7/05



EMPLOYMENT ACTION FORM ~ DATE SUBMITTED: 8/28/2025

COUNTY OF PERQUIMANS |
STATUS: NEW EMPLOYEE/PROBATIONARY PERIOD/MERIT RAISE

NAME: __Alyssa Ratoliff S0C. SEC, NO.:

POSITION: FuiiﬂTiIﬁe Telecommunicator | DEPT.:_

211

[1  NEW EMPLOYEE EFFECTIVE DATE:

GRADE: STEP: SALARY:
ENDING DATE OF PROBATIONARY PERIOD:

CURRENT: GRADE: STEP: SALARY:
{0 JOB PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
YEAR q 2 3 4 (CIRCLE)
{1 DATE OF SUCCESSFUL COMPLETION OF PROBATIONARY PERIOD AND
Data RECOMMENDATION BY DEPARTMENT FOR PERMANENT STATUS.
GRADE: STEP: SALARY:
£ DATE OF ANNUAL. EVALUATION AND RECOMMENDATION FOR STEP
Date RAISE, (YEAR 2 3 4)
GRADE: - STEP: SALARY:
] DATE OF EMPLOYEE TERMINATION DUE TO UNSUCCESSFUL PROBA-
Date TIONARY PERIOL:.

X 812712025 DATE OF EMPLOYEE RESIGNATION
Date

L] RECOMMENDATION AND EFFECTIVE DATE FOR EMPLOYEE MERIT RAISE,

Date GRADE: STEP: _ SALARY:

THE ABOVE NAMED COUNTY EMPLOYEE IS BEING RECOMMENDED FOR THE INCREASE IN SALARY

LISTED ABOVE BASED ON HIS/HER WORK PERFORMANGE EVALUATION COMPLETED:
PER THE COUNTY PERSONNEL POLICY.

W o SR o e e e A W o

DEPART MMENDATION COUNTY MANAGER APPROVAL
f} / 38’/ 25 DATE:
FINANGE OFFICER
DATE:

Revisad 7/05



WL - Page 30
EMPLOYMENT ACTION EORM DATE SUBMITTED: __ 8/18/2025
COUNTY OF PERCLHMANS

?r 1},

g \ TN
) f DN
NAME: Kathyrn Touchton 80C. SEC. NO.: k“’*«{f E

PQSITION:Pardt-Time Fill-in Non Certified Telecommunicator Dept.: 911

[l NEWEMPLOYEE EEEECTIVE DATE: |
GRADE: ETEP; SALARY:

EMDING DATE OF PNQBATFONAF‘W PERIOD: - -

[l U0B PERFORMANGE EVALUATION

YEAR 1 2 3 4 (CIRCLE)
B DATE OF SUCCESSFUL COMPLETION OF PROBATIONARY PERIOD AND
Date RECOMMENDATION BY DEPARTMENT FOR PERMANENT STATUS,
GRADE: STEP: SALARY:
oo DATE OF ANNUAL EVALUATION AND RECOMMENDATION EOR STER
Bate RAISE. (YEAR 2 3 4y
GRADE: STEP: __ SALARY:
O DATE OF EMPLOYEE TERMINATION DUE TO UNSUCCESSFUL PROBA-

Drle TIONARY PERIOD.

X B8/158/2025 DATE OF EMPLOYEE REMOVAL FROM ROSTER

Gate

2 RECOMMENDATION AND EFFECTIVE DATE FOR EMPLUYEE MERIT RAISE,
Date GRADE: . STEP: SALARY:

THE ABOVE NAMED COUNTY EMPLOYEE iS BEING RECOMMENDED FOR THE INCREASE [N SALARY
LISTED ABOVE BASED ON HIS/HER WORK PERFORMANCE EVALUATION COMPLETED: _
PER THE COUNTY PERSONNEL POLICY,

A e el 0 e kol e

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION COUNTY MANAGER APPROVAL
y e aavk W
7 — 7
onvel_ &/Pa/bs MTE: ﬁ/&é’/ﬂ

FINANCE OFFICER

DATE:

Revisad 7/05



WL - Page i1
EMPLOYMENT ACTION FORM DATE SUBMITTED: Auqust 217, 2025

COUNTY OF PERQUIMANS
STATUS: NEW EMPLOYEE/PROBATIONARY PERIODMERIT RAJISE

rrrrrr o o

CORM
NAME: Kay Hall 80C, BEC NO.:_ it/ bl L
POSITION: Social Worker {1 DEPT.: Sooial Sarvices

MEW EMFPLOYEE EFFECTIVE DATE:

GRADE: STEP: SALARY:

ENDING DATE OF PROBATIONARY PERIQOD!

T T e T A T A,

CURRENT: GRADE: STEP: SALARY:

i T A

e o T e T e T e E e o e e (e e B e A

JOB PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
YEAR 1 2 3 4 {CIRCLE)

[._] DATE OF SUCCESSFUL COMPLETION QF PROBATIONARY PERIOD AND

Date RECOMMENDATION BY DERPARTMENT FOR PERMANENT 8TATUS,
GRADE: STER: SALARY:
DATE OF ANNUAL EVALUATION AND RECOMMENDATION FOR STEP
Oate RAIGE. (YEAR 2 3 4}
GRADE: STEP: SALARY:

O DATE OF EMPLOYEE TERMINATION/RESIGNATION,

RAISE.
pete  GRADE: 67 STEP 10 SALARY: $84,013

THE ABOVE NAMED COUNTY EMPLOYEE 1§ BEING RECOMMENDED FOR THE INCREASE IN
SALARY LISTED ABOVE BASED ON HIS/HER WORK PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
COMPLETED: PER THE COUNTY PERSONNEL POLICY.

e rok e qe ke o e e o oo ooyl st

ATION COUNTY MANAGER APPROVAL

i (e thot

\J I

FINANCE OFFICER

DATE:

Reavised 7/05



W.L, - Pape 12

EMPLOVMENT ACTION FOEM DATE SUBMITTED: August 21, 2025
COUNTY OF PERQUIMANS
STATUS: NEW EMPLOYEE/PROBATIONARY PERIOD/MERIT RAISE
SN TN TNV
NAME: _Pamela Midgett $0C. 88C. NO.i[ {1 { }\Ea IR
A S o T
RPOSITION: Income Maintenance Supervisor 1) DEPT.; Soclal Services

NEW EMPLOYEE EFFECTIVE DATE:
GRADE: __ STEP_____ SALARY:

ENDING DATE OF PROBATIONARY PERIOD:

T s

CURRENT; GRADE: _8TEP: SALARY:
(1 JOB PERFORMANGE EVALUATION
YEAR 1 2 3 4 (CIRCLE)
] DATE OF SUCCESSFUL COMPLETION OF PROBATIONARY PERIOD AND
Dt RECOMMENDATION BY DEPARTMENT FOR PERMANENT STATUS.
GRADE! STEP: ___ SALARY: .
L] DATE OF ANNUAL EVALUATION AND RECOMMENDATION FOR STEP
Date RAISE. (YEAR 2 3 4)
GRADE: STER: _____  SALARY:

O DATE OF EMPLOYEE TERMINATION/RESIGNATION,

Date
GRADE: 67 STER: 7 SALARY: $50.187.00

THE ABOVE NAMED COUNTY EMPLOYEE 1S BEING RECOMMENDED FOR THE INCREASE IN
SALARY LISTED ABOVE BASED ON HIS/HER WORK PERFORMANGCE EVALUATION

COMPLETED: PER THE COUNTY PERSONNEL POLICY.
i o e ek sk ok b e e e
DEPARY RECOMMENDATION COUNTY MANAGER APPROVAL
(Weudio K
S AN S - i
DAYE; August 21, 2025 m\lﬁaz 9/ ,;2,@/,25"

FINANCE OFFICER

DATE:

Revisad 7/05



WL - Page 13
EMPLOYMENT ACTION FORM DATE SUBMITTED: __ 8/15/2028

COUNTY OF PERQUIMANS
STATUS: NEW EMPLOYEEPROBATIONARY PERIOD/MERIT meF

NAME: _Sophia Wright SOC. SEEC, NO: f‘f 0

POSITION: _FPapt-Time Fill-in EMT DEFT. EMS

[T NEWEMPLOYEE BFFECTIVE DATE:
GRADE; STEPR: SALARY:

ENDJNG DATE OF F’ROBATF\DNAF(Y PERIOD:

SALARY:

' JOE PERFOERMANCE EVALUATION

b

YEAR 1 il 3 4 {CIRCLE)
(] DATE OF SUCCESSFUL COMPLETION OF PROBATIONARY PERIOD AND
Rate RECOMMENDATION BY DEPARTMENT FOR PERMANENT STATUS.
GRADE: ETER: SALARY:
] DATE OF ANNUAL EVALUATION AND RECOMMENDATION FOR STEP
Biate RAISE. (YEAR 2 3 4)
GRADE: o BTER: SALARY:
i DATE OF EMPLOYEE TERMINATION DUE TO UNSUCCESSFUL PROBA-
Date TIONARY PERIOD,

il DATE OF EMPLOYEE RESIGNATION

X 9/1/ 20 25 RECDMMFNDAT]QN AND EFFECTIVE DATE FOR EMPLOYEE MERIT RAISE.

Date GRADE: 84 STEP: SALARY: 518,72 Hourly

THE ABOVE NAMED COUNTY EMPLOYEE IS BEING RECOMMENDED FOR THE INCREASE IN SALARY
LISTED ABOVE BASED ON HIS/HER WORK PERFORMANCE EVALUATION COMPLETED:
PER THE COUNTY PERSONNEL POLICY,

A Rk AR e WA

DEPAR%E%;:{MFNDAT!DN CD%Y MANABER APPROVAL

E: iﬁ'fﬁﬂ*‘/ ,9-5‘ D\JTE: 55/ ﬂﬁ/ 28

FINANCE QFFICER

DATE:

Ravised 7/04



WL - Page 14

EMPLOYMENT ACTION FORM. DATE SUBMITYED: | BfiB/2028

COUNTY OF PERGUIMANS
STATUS: NEW EMPLOYEE/PROBATIONARY PER!DDIMER]T RAISE

I i, “‘w gf ‘‘‘‘‘‘ o
NAME:  Tabitha Martin SOC. SEC. Mo%{ . M( ):)E =3 \g
POSITION:  Part-Time Filln EMT — s -

[} NEW EMPLOYBE BEFFECTIVE DATE:
GRADE: STEP: SALARY: )
ENDING DATE OF PROBATIONARY PERIOD:

CURRENT: GRADE: STEP: SALARY: - ' "

] JOB PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
YEAR 1 2 3 4 (CIRCLE)
L DATE OF SUCCESSFUL COMPLETION OF PROBATIONARY PERIOD AND
Date RECOMMENDATION BY DEPARTMENT FOR PERMANENT STATUS,
GRADE: _ STEP:  SALARY;
o . DATE OF ANNUAL EVALUATION AND RECOMMENDATION FOR STEP
Dale RAISE, (YEAR 2 3 4}

GRADE: _STER: SALARY:

[ DATE OF EMPLOYEE TERMINATION DUE TO UNSUCCESSEUL PROBA.
iade TIOMARY PERIOD,

N DATE OF EMPLOYEE RESIGNATION

)( 9/ 1/ 2025 RECOMMENDATION AND EFFECTIVE DATE FOR EMPLOYEE MERIT RAISE,

Dale GRADE; &4 STEP: 2 SALARY: $18.72 Hourly

THE ABOVE NAMED COUNTY EMPLOYEE 15 BEING RECOMMENDED FOR THE INCREASE IN SALARY
LISTED ABOVE BASED ON HIS/HER WORK PERFORMANCE BVALUATION COMPLETED:
PER THE COUNTY PERBONNEL POLICY,

VAR T T R R

DEFARTMENT RECOMMENDATION GQ%‘( MANAGER APPROVAL

e

o

'

oar, W;afés Shre: ﬁ'/ aﬁé?/ﬂf

FINANCE OFFICER

DATE:

Revised 7/05



V.C. - Page 15

EMPLOYMENT ACTION FORM DATE SUBMITTED: August 21,2028
GCOUNTY OF PERQUIMANS
STATUS: NEW EMPLOYEE/PROBATIONARY PERIODIMEF{I’T@M& e W "y
g ‘1{ 7
t (W ! f
AN S
NAME: Melissa Harris 50C. SEC. NO, | o Mo §w -
POSITION: Sociat Warker i . DEPT.: Social Services .
MEW EMPLOYEE EFFECTIVE DATE;
GRADE: STEP: SALARY:

ENDING DATE OF PROBATIONARY PERIOD:

CURRENT: GRADE: _____ STEPR SALARY

(] JOB PERFORMANGE EVALUATION
YEAR 1 2 3 4 (CIRCLE)
B ‘ DATE OF SUCCESSFUL COMPLETION OF PROBATIORARY PERIOD AND
Date RECOMMENDATION BY DEPARTMENT EQOR PERMANENT STATUS,
GRADE: _ETEPR: SALARY: '
X 9/1/2025 DATE OF ANNUAL EVALUATION AND RECOMMENDATION FOR STEP
Date RAISE, (YEAR 2 3 4)
GRADE: 89 STEP: 2 SALARY: $48.528.00
[} DATE OF EMPLOYEE TERMINATION/RESIGNATION.

RECC)MMENDATIGN AND EFFECTIVE DATE FOR EMPLDYEE MERIT F%MSE

Date GRADE; STEM SALARY:

THE ABOVE NAMED COUNTY EMPLOYEE IS BEING RECOMMENDED FOR THE INCREASE IN
BALARY LISTED ABOVE BASED ON HIS/HER WORK PERFORMANGE BVALUATION
COMPLETED: PER THE COUNTY PERSONNEL POLICY.

e e e v el e W ol i e v v Wi gl

DERARTIENT.RECOMMENDATION co% MANAGER APPROVAL

DATE. ARuaust 21, 2025 DATE: 9’/2,9"/25'

FINANCE OFFICER

DATE:

Revisaed 7/05



EMPLOYMENT ACTION FORM DATE SUBMITTED: 3“3”-2._5
COUNTY OF PEROQIUIMANS

POSITION: Certified Deputy DEPT.: Sheriff's Qffica

(1 NEW EMPLOYEE EFFECTIVE DATE;
GRADE: STER: SALARY:
ENDING DATE OF PROBATIONARY PERIOD:

GCURREMNT: GRADE: 68 STEP: 6 SALARY: 581,197
[l JOB PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
YEAR 1 2 3 4 {CIRCLE)
£ DATE OF SUCCESSFUL COMPLETION OF PROBATIONARY PERIOD AND
Date RECOMMENDATION BY DEPARTMENT FOR PERMANENT STATUS,
GRADE: STEP: SALARY:
K 9125 DATE OF ANNUAL EVALUATION AND RECOMMENDATION £GR STEP
Date RAISE. (YEAR 2 3 &)
GRADE: 68____ STER: 7 SALARY: $52,446
O DATE OF EMPLOYEE TERMINATION DUE TO UNSUCGESSFUL PROBA.
Date TIONARY PERIOD.

L DATE OF EMPLOYEE RESIGNATION / RETIREMENT.

U RECOMMENDATION AND EFFECTIVE DATE FOR EMPLOYEE MERIT RAISE.

Date  GRADE: _STER: SALARY:;

THE ABOVE NANMED COUNTY EMPLOYEE IS BEING RECOMMENDED FOR THE INCREASE IN
SALARY LISTED ABOVE BASED ON HIS/HER WORK PERFORMANCE EVALUATION COMPLETED: .
PER THE COUNTY PERSONNEL POLICY.

el Il iy e o e e ek

DEPARTMENT R COMMENDATION COUNTY MANAGER APPROVAL
e
e ) o - M f
DATE: ¥ S S xf—~/( IZ‘}%TE: g/m/ig”

FINANGE OFFICER
BATE:

Revisad 7/05



WG, - Page 1

ST,

JACOQUELINE §. FRIERSON

W Register of Deeds, Perguimans County

PO, Box 74« Hertord, N.C. 27944 « Phone {232) 4263660 « Fax (232) 426-7443 = email: jackietviersongiperquimangcountync.goy

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING
REMOVAL OF CERTAIN PUBLIC RECORD BOOKS
KEPT BY THE REGISTER OF DEEDS FOR
THE PURPOSE OF REPAIR, RESTORATION
AND REBINDING

WHEREAS, NCGS 132-7 provides that books of public records should be copied or
repaired, renovated or rebound if worn, mutilated, damaged or difficult to read; and

WHEREAS, there is identified certain books of public records maintained by the Register
of Deeds in need of repair, restoration and rebinding; and

WHEREAS, Kofile Technologies is under contract to provide repair, restoration and
rebinding of those certain books of public records.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
FOR PERQUIMANS COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA, that:

Section 1. The Register of Deeds is authorized to remove or cause to be removed to the
care and custody of Kofile Technologies for repair, restoration and rebinding the following
books of public records:

Vital Statistics Mammiage Licenses 1912-1915.

Section 2. The books of public records listed in Section 1 of this resolution may remain
in the care and custody of Kofile Technologies for the length of time required to repair, restore
and rebind them.

Section 3. This resolution is effective upon its adoption.

ADOPTED the day of . 2025

Wallace Nelson, Chairman
Board of Commissioners

ATTEST:

Rebecea T. Corprew, Clerk to the Board

Parquimans County's Vision:
To be a community of opportunite in which 1o live, learin, work, prosper and play.



D - Page 2

JACQUELINE 8. FRIERSON
=B Register of Deeds, Perquimans County

B.OL Box 74« Hertford. ML.C. 27944 » Phone (232) 426-53660 » Fax (252) 426-7443 » ernail: jackiefriersonr@perquimanseountynic.gov

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING
REMOVAL OF CERTAIN PUBLIC RECORD BOOKS
KEPT BY THE REGISTER OF DEEDS FOR
THE PURPOSE OF REPAIR, RESTORATION
AND REBINDING

WHEREAS, NCGS 132-7 provides that books of public records should be copied or
repaired, renovated or rebound if worn, mutilated, damaged or difficult to read; and

WHEREAS, there is identified certain books of public records mainiained by the Register
of Deeds in need of repair, restoration and rebinding; and

WHEREAS, C.W. Warthen is under contract to provide repair, restoration and
rebinding of those certain books of public records.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
FOR PERQUIMANS COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA, that:

Section 1. The Register of Deeds is anthorized to remove or cause to be removed to the
care and custody of C.W., Warthen for repair, restoration and rebinding the following books of

public records:

Plat Book 1 Part 2
Real Estate Book EE
Real Estate Book UU

Section 2. The books of public records listed in Section 1 of this resolution may remain
in the care and custody of C.W. Warthen for the length of time required to repair, restore and
rebind them.

Section 3. This resolution is effective upon its adoption.

ADQPTED the day of , 2025,

Wallace Nelson, Chairman
Board of Commissioners

ATTEST:

Rebecca T. Corprew Clerk to the Board

Perquimans County's Vision:
To be a conmmunity af opportunity in which to live, learn, work, prosper and play.



VILA. - Page 1

Perquimans County Planning & Zoning Staff Report
By Rhonda Repanshek, Planner
September 2, 2025 County Commissioner Meeting

SUBJECT: Gift of Property, fiaglibt subdivisiom\recombination reguest by William and
Earnestene ‘Patricia’ Howell to their daughter, Shannon Costen. Subject property is proposed
to be a second flag-lot, one-acre in size, immediately north of the structure at 1013 New Hope
Road. It is proposed to be cut from tax parcel no. 4-0052-0001A and 4-0052-0002 and utilize an
existing access easement. Subject nroperty is in a Rural Agricultural (RA) zone.

Project Description/ Research & Analysis

Decisions regarding multiple flag-lots are administrative decisions, meaning if they meet
ordinance standards, they must be approved. The standards for land use zone RA are:

Minimurn ot dimensions of 125 ft wide and at least 150 ft deep.

Minimum lot size of 32,500 square feet, which is 0.7 acre.

Minimum access width of 45 feet when proposed access is greater than 1,000 feetin

length.

# Deed of transfer must have the special paragraph language as stated in Subdivision
Regulation section 801{A)(6) which requires that if the land is ever sold outside the
family, then the access must be paved. :

¥ Ashared access agreement may be necessary - in this case it is necessary.

Y V¥

Proposed Layout:

The proposed parcel will be a flag-lot where the access is the ‘pole’ and the ‘flag’ is the part
which must meet a minimum square footage and minimum dimensions. The Howell's parcel is
tess than 125 feet wide, so the proposed lot will be combined with an approximately 22 foot
wide portion of neighboring parcel 4-0052-0002 owned by Mr. Jacob Wills, Ms, Costan’s uncle.
This combination will occur at the same time as the subdivision from her parents to make the
resuiting flag portion 125 feet by 365 feet; approximately an acre. To prevent a landlocked
parcel, the existing access easement will extend to the residual land beyond Ms, Coston’s lot,
which will result in a total length over 1,000 feet long. All required landowner signatures have
been obtained for the ingress, egress and utility easement to increase its width by 5 feet for a
total of 45 feet.

Technical Points to Consider:

o Perthe County Water Department Director in a July 18, 2025 correspondence, this is the
last water meter that will be allowed at that entrance location on New Hope Road.



Wi.LA., - Page 2

o The County 50il and Water Technician created a Drainage Plan (attachment 3) whereby
surface water travels south to the subject parcel’s southernmost property line, then
east through an existing ditch across the parcel to the east. He recommends building
the pad up under the house to ensure positive drainage away from it. Referring to the
preliminary survey in this application package, he stated:

e “It appears that Lot A has & ditch on the north side of the property running west
to east tying into a field ditch that runs south toward a wooded area, next to
New Hope Road, of parcel (4-0052-0004). Everything from Lot A and B will be
draining that direction, so that ditch that | just referred to, on the property line,
should help with drainage. | would recommend some small swales along the
new property lines to convey the water to the ditch t just referred to. | am
attaching a map to show betfer what | am describing.”

¢ Planning Board should decide whether any specific house orientation is advised.
[8/13/2025 update — No orientation was discussed.]

e The access must be named if 3 addressable structures are proposed but may or may not
be named when only 2 addressable structures are proposed, per the county addressing
ordinance.

Regulations and Procedure

Potential Schedule: Thursday, July 17, 2025 the Howell’s Application package was received by
the Planning & Zoning Office and was found to be substantially complete as a conceptual plan.
Planning Board action at their Regular Meeting on August 12 allows the case to be reviewed
by the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) on September 2nd,

Recommendation Procedure: Perquimans County Subdivision Regulation Section 402(B){(9)
provides for the Planning Board to consider the proposed subdivision using Major Subdivision
review procedures, which means they review it at a public meeting and make a
recommendation to the Board of County Commissioners who will make the final approval or

denial.

Recommendations

Planning Board made a motion to recornmend approval of the flag-lot suhdivision deed of gift
as proposed by Willlam and Earnestene Howell to their daughter Shannon Coston, combined

with an approximately 22-foot-wide strip of her uncle, Jacob Wills', parcel: conditioned upon

establishing a minimum 45 ft wide easement and scceptance and installation of the drainage

plan created by the Chowan & Perguimans Soit & Water Conservation District Technician. The
motion passed unanimously.



Vi1 A - Page 3

Suggested Motions — Recommendations — Actions:

Commissioners may consider using one of the following scripts to form the desired motion for
approval or denial of the flag-lot subdivision, as follows:

MOTION TO APPROVE: Motion to find the proposed lot to be consistent with subdivision
requirements and approve the flag-lot subdivision deed-of-gift, as proposed by William and
tarnestene Howell, to their daughter Shannon Coston, combined with an approximately 22-
foot-wide strip of her uncle, Jacob Wills’, parcel; conditioned upon
e establishing o minimum 45 ft. wide easement ard
e geceptance and installation of the drainage plan created by the Chowan & Perquimons
Soil and Water Conservation District Technician.

~MOTION TO DENY: Motion to deny the flag-lot subdivision deed of gift because...

ATTACHMENTS: 1} General GIS location map
2} Applicant’s application and site plan with septic system permit
3} County Soil and Water Technician Drainage Plan



Fa

. VELA, - ge &
Staff Report Attachment 1a

1

1984 0001 S

“detd sigj Up pauleILoa

Loheulog sl Jo) Ayligisuodsal jebe) ou sawnsse AunoT ay “Jupwirop [ehs) jo Aasmns

pue] B o} simansqns B 10N si dewl sy Ajuo sesodind xey Jog ase ST 90IB IFENDIsY]

UORIMSS spasey XL
SINIWASY (77
spated ]

pusbay

\

\

-

SITE,




WA - Fage b

Legend

e RoadCenterfines

{1 Pareels
f27) EASEMENTS

m Parcels selection

Disclaimer: Parcel lines are for tax purposes only. This map is NOT a substitute for a land
survey or legal document. The County assumes no jegal responsibility for the information ;

200 Feoet
] ) ] |

contained on this map.



VILLA. - Page 6
Staff Report Attachment 2

Fa- Shenne Losten

Gift of Propert OFFICIAL USE ONLY
perty Dute Recaivad: T-(7-2045 Recsived by: A A

Application Date Completed: 774005 Confimed by
Subject Property Tay Map No.: Y= 5.0~ oot 4 {f*lmﬂﬂ ok Yooy ,MWJZZ»\

Propoged number of lots: g i3 residual pamm over Wacres? '
if noy remind appiicant 1o reguest ARRS's preliminary approval of msiduai
fot when applying for septic tank pavemit far proposed lots).

| i A0 SR ,
1/We fhareby certify that /we am/are the owner(s) of the property located ot __TBD New Hops Road 1/ wWe
hereby request 2 Deed of Gift Subdivision at this location. {/We acknowledge that this Application 1s for a single lot to my/our
child or grandehild, Furthermore, Ywe scknowledge that this Is the one and only such gift In Perquimans County given to this

child oF grandehild from me/us durlag the lest ten (103 vear period and that the resultant lot is equal to or exceeds the
standards of the County 83 shown inthe Subdivision Regulations and that restrictions are placed pursuant to Section BO1A {5)
of the Perquimans County Subdivision Regulations in the Deed of Gift to the child or grandchild. As the vwrer(s) of the

property, Ywe cequest approval of the proposed Deed of Gt and related Boundary Surww.

Raspactiully yours,

i Apap A Saten M 7/:.-3 3/ y

Stgnaium of Olnerf GTantor Wiliam X,

ST
S adpull_ 07/25/2%
gnature of Owner/GrantorEmoetinePatrica Howdl Date

r’C}

Sworn o ard subscribed before me, this the Qf?) ey of o Lot 2074,
&.J iy

Natary mhﬁtmﬁf:mm . County of of£5F qummzm f“kﬂ}ﬁ‘eﬁcﬁb 3
S Q¥ eenm g Sl
state of A\Joethy RO 03
. i A0 No "y
My comunission explres: ﬁC@MWf’r IO; m f Eg;'-‘ Pugﬁfg ; é_,,-’ §
” Lo N
o
, % ou B

e "’“mmuﬂ“‘
Gift of Property Application
Page 2 of b
Revised 01/26/2023



. ﬂr’ ‘Eyt@-n;mﬂ[ SI_‘T’—E_m'f? - o e
fot Df Prﬁpe rtv QFFICIAL USE ONLY
. Date Received: J-/7- 2048 Raceived by:
Apphcatmn Date Compieted:M;Mm_ Confirmed by: -
Subject Property Tax Map No.: Z6e5-cop dd Sk o€ DOF ) 60p D

Proposed number of lots: sk Is residual parcel over 10 acreg?
if no, reming applicant to request ARMSE’s preliminary approval of residual
fut when applying for septic tapk permit for proposed fot(s).

PAGE 2 SIGNATURES CONTINUED

Cc‘:“ri'ta'_t":t.é‘h'dSLirireylnfpffﬁaﬂmnhl S ‘ ‘ , . . I ' ]

Title of Survey: Minor Subdivision Survey for Shannon Coston Continued for signing

Property Owner(s): — s e,
Mailing Addrass: _ - — — e
Phone; — Ermail; - — — N
DWhgf{#j-;ﬂéQuést' and'SIgrqatj'ure(s:}‘ o

/We hareby certify that I/we am/are the awherfs) of the Property located at . - YWe

hereby request a Deed of Gift Subdivisian at this leeation. 1/we acknowledge that this Application is for 3 single lot to my/oyr
child or grandchiid, Furthermore, i/we acknowledge that this is the one and only such gift In Perguimans County glven ta this
childf or grandchiid from me/us during the last tan (10) vear period and that the resultant Jot is 2qual to of exceeds the
stami.érds of the County as shown in the Subdivision Regulations and that restrictions are placed Pursiant to Section 8034 (B)
of the Perguimans County Subdivision Regulations in the Deed of Gift to the child or grandehild, As the owner(s) of the

kroperty, I/we request approval of the proposed Deed of Gift ang related Boundary Survey.

Respectfuliy yours,

Votortden o oy
SfEnature of Owner Grantorlacon Idea Wills Date Mﬁuﬁ{:ﬂ”“‘“‘"

Signature of Gwner/Grantar ~— - Date — -

— e —
Sworn to and s rived before me, this the ;H day of 'J"‘\"\ , 20e08d
Notary Publi L"’w __County of _ S*\awa ,

State of _\ ’Kﬁaﬂ-\r\ C;E;b\:hn

My commission expires: _woey kLY

THUY T, VINSON
Natary Public » Nerth Carslina
: Crislaw County )
g My Commission Expires Hov 12, 2028 }

Gift of Property Application
Page 2 of g
Revised 01/26/2023



ViiA, - Page 8

APPLICATION FOR GIFT OF PROPERTY

CHECKLIST OF INFORMATION AND ITEMS NEEDED PRIOR TO APPROVAL & RECORDATION

OF BOUNDARY SURVEY

To confiem compliance with Section 801{A)(6) of the Perguimans County Subdivision Regulations, complete and return
pages 1 and 2 of this Application for Gift of Praperty, and provide additiona! information, as follows:

%

I«

|

<

|QQQQQ

Comipleted application

Boundary Survey with Certification Statements and references to residual parcel, if any {see Note #1 below),

Water availability: Sourty-negrempe-septic k-

‘Proposed sewage systern: ,Q?U”ty in-ground septic {attach ARHS'5 septic system permit or preliminary

approval if applicable) A48 177
My/our ownership of parent tract is evidenced by deed recorded in Rea! Estate Book 424 , Page 739

OR Will File Nurnber o, UAttach copy of relevant section of will).
My/our parent tract ls Parcel No. 4-0052-0001A/4-0052-0002 "

Size of Parent Tract: ___ 4.5215. 15
Linear street frontage width: ‘!0[)' anhd depth: 2093ﬂ1§ of parent tract,

Propos&d acresof giftparcel: 1 acre
Proposed street frontage width: na . and depth': 36 _of gift parcel.

FOR OFFICE STAFF LISE

NN

—_—

Parent tract zoned: 'R A - . Future Land Use Classification: Kesidectiad &;5 .

Review and consultation with Soll & Water Conservation staff

May need to establish drainage easerments on property lines depending upon Drainage plan requirements.
Disclosure statement referencing Section 402(B){5), 402{D}{1), 402(1), and 402{J} of the Perquimans County
Subdlvision Regulations regarding grading, drainage and erosion control.

Other {Specify):

Other (Specify):

NOTES: (1) Per Section 303u1(8),tany lot of less than 10 acres, including any residual parcel, raust obtain 2 certificate or
letter from the Health Departinent stating that a septic system may be approved for the lot(s); end (2} Per Section
303.2, all lots subdivided from a tract since December 31, 1998 shall be included in determining when the maximum
number has been reached and when full review procedure shall be required.

Gift of Praperty Application
Page 3 of 5
Revised 01/26/2023



Page &

WiLA,

. 7 .
shuuly be ﬂﬂﬂ:m$mxm spelling

LEGENTY WS =
M =
ST 5FE" ST AT - CURROET FEORERIY CusiY Sk PRI, PORECL 2
FIEND Seatd FERAT P T AECRHATN) SIS A ETRLL
! TERS RS AT (RS 022 KOS HE apan i
———— PYCREAIT A HERFOED, KE P ;
[ —— -1 T j =
——— e ASEDENE PRIERTT L PR LS o
lllllll ey o Hiopw s HLS 0.
||||||| PREPOGED CECILENT 1m0 BT ATORT fd Roen g
llllllll A L WY ME ZE5IF =
=
r RBECE AFTENERGD G4 474 PR PR DG GM.PR PS4 AC LA 6% g
RS B RRABE AE 4 L EE [
T SOE RE VU RETO ST | i E
FrowE E EECT ! o+ SENEOMAL ROTMIMCES OF. #5, i LM, DA SO, RO 2% DO SA2 ef P
| 25 e H SEL GG G PG PO OB 0% FC SR AC 4 B0 .
Nmdoe? o fnnin wa smmeam! - INS RenEF RAS FOGOMMED SINGAT M ST OF & TNEE SRCRT D =
Ha¥ BT ATLLCT #ll TaSfsKuls FESTRsons OF DWCWamisTos AT e

AFECE THE FeoRsRrE

< B FRPERTY OS5 SOREICT T AL SETRADE LD FASTHORT STGRATIMINTS
ST RETR BT PERRANANS DIENTT JORNT DADAUNGE & SCRFRANTS OF

Thal INE FLAT HAS FRLPARED & ACTORESNE Wik S5 A7-J8 A5 LWNNT.

ESTCARY. ..ﬁ.am:dﬁuaﬂw o SINIE 887 [T Gl I SLRUCY CEIATS A Supaba
X ~ . ] A CALLY O SrsniALTY AT PAS AN GITMsE
4 BATE (PO RADRT SATTRE Gy TE SEEOERTE SOV T ¢ N85 Dol T FEmak RREELE O LAMS
BrAT RS S0P APPLLT [0 AS LGSAXD MRS 4 FERA CERTFED SOl i s e et

e B T TR s bromns, BT ek Bafiy S ST 4 St W G T R SeR T
sreas =Rgr wu...w..m.uhn.as..mh BsT Foi 8 enkn e, MOT FOR RECORDATION,
SFE MR AT SRR (5,47 N e R e e I )

- AR B DOOAENATE BITIG i CSTACES MORTTEML GO CONVEYANCES

+ DS RIETVEY X SWE0 O PR BUACRNMTA M AT SATA AEREOA

4

-{H}32-(002

NI CRROLAS

o Heali 7

-] s y y
H T i £
LN b I MWRCA B N X BOART e o)

n
‘\..N
E
o
af

SHANNON COSTON
PORTION OF TRACT 11 - DB, 424, PG 735« PORTION OF PHY: 4.0032.000
PO EN Y

PORTION QF TRACT {2- DB 424, PG 754 - PORTION OF PID: 4

MINOR SUBDIVISION SURVEY FOR

e 1 ECQ 4 2
B 3 re S e nn o T L SRR R A D R AT R Yz L iR e
FEERE 5 WROTE FED i i EXT Ty i = B - pAz-pa i
LS 1 e ) ! ! ! il
T f
It e e e i e — L }41*1] —_—
i, i ;
i i
o I i Kot
PosT OGBS g £, £ FERLEE A el S
£ oA oF } N !
E [ Crr iU Y o t L QT PRt i 3
i i
f |
i |
2o A ! ! 1 Wt
;. TTTT T TS T e e e gl e e i J
¢ £ / sy e g
: 4, & aife © % ;
m F ' ! L s it .w ..qw .m_....w% AHP«
L SR LT RIS . =
: R g B 5 aied D
m pPE R S ) i i AL d-Sasp oo u.....ﬂ..n% Ammh._.
[ et S - y {
H CERENCAT 5 _SURIFSSION RO SFFISE H.. m___ . ____ﬂ = X x
ST T RS BT B SOTINASN FLAR SR MINECH AT BITY G B COES —_— 1 ! G S E
LY Wi BT Se@laleisti RSCLOA RONS £F PEALIRGNS SRS T T e e e T e e “ &
| &
_m._ .H iy 5
P, — - P MOATLS AT sy
e FERAEULE LR Bearizey __..__ e Pl e N a,f
ot g re=rd AT s T e e e S i .W‘M
T T e T T e s R T T R
3 AMIRIE CATGMeA, PERUTHANS DO £ TTCROE A i PR GRS R CSnaT Ty g Y
. \
CGRAFHI SCALE o -
e srcrm o & 2 = RN L6 RS E
AR ST VT Y AT T VAR U FEAT T RS I CERRCA TN T - [ : : i e _..w .wH. 4
AN WETVE Al STATUICAY ESTURDNNTY S5R AXITRISG o 0 Py ) yroaer, b S E
. SN E A
5 ECES s <
Eporyte=— o WS




i

Acarseaatr Bagioeag Hragw Savic

Parmit; 443653

¥iil.A. - Page v;%@w‘arhs—nc.mg

Paraers o Pariatic [Health Perguimans
PIN: REPAIR
AT T R medfg
Qwnar: Applicant: LTAR: |, &
COSTON, SHANNON ‘ COSTON SHMANNON - Water: PUBLIC
1027 NEW HOPE RD 1027 NEW HOPE R[
HERTFORD, NC 27544 HERTFORD, NC 27544 SINGELE FAMILY
‘ GP; Y#a
Location; ¥ 8elonom
BEHIND 1018 NEW HOPE RD  #.52
L b e R
"/ct_m.'} f""’/é’ n Teamik
-0 4@_,_. e
- o j-d.:«-u; 4
i J.'_,-:;,
"B T rensl ﬁ P
-a)‘?. é’arnn[u‘..f Mfu
-mlﬂm /ﬂfwd .rmar.;x?("
/2 )'A._:J#J Cooer I ,ﬁ/@mﬁ" l
- . : . 2 m-ﬁu )
/Zs I ﬂ.{fy soLsr P 7.:::Ml.$ [ ’prfg,#
'/L?a.'il& 4':5-1,/ Jﬂ-/‘éﬁ‘cé'ﬁ a ,éﬁhf_*,é"
s Perpide : “tet e hohe < fo’ »
’ 5‘%;}-& Pz be fﬁ-/é*#A/ng Lo A
a}qr’mm'w:j - ‘ . '
Sk T Tranedid]
‘foz:.rm.'?l AR FANS ohLSaR T
L A
. ¥
omnE R eng
Authorized Agent: Date: .ggu_ggggggm

Haflowell, Ralph

',,/

Approves,,

Date: .



Page 11

Attachment 3




JONIA

HLIVHL S0 NOQLIYOS

§

2TV A0 NOILINO

P
wq -

el FE

NEOIROD NONNPHYS

HOHA AHANS NOI

3%

EOR-TEHI D O NOLEN S - Y3 "5‘.'?«'1 1

FHIOU-Z800F JCIET A8 NOLLNOG -

l

Tl RO W)

S1A14dr]

i qﬂﬂeﬂ PABIET

uw.#.a...mrz..

M IV AZANDD
HO ST TR 5w v + oo e
WOILYOEO0TY HOd TON
NRTAEE LSRN L o) D,
T A i L3 IR i

TRAREG A SO TG LTRRIAEE FE AN ¥ a0 Flay 3 aead Reed
T SRERNGET ¥ SReED AREE FU JRL LUST O WD v SEhm )

DI SF GTS2 5D A ARRAEIDGE K SFRIaGERS She (YL Sey oma

THIETS CRSIAE TSI TR i) S AaTasie B GIen
SEMATEN NE QT T (o) SIREIE SN SDe T
AR EYSTWD oF }LWE&. uv.\dﬂ_..u\_unq h_ MOGFEED AT Cary

P AR KRS

}.!Llf.nﬁn;.? ..ﬁ.f._ HEPEd] S 239h SA RN L AIEE W p,..uw.na ERR s LU H

A FANGIE S AT R0

YRR
[EEEREE
e
ol row
! !

T
o E o

FEHDE NGRS

ARpra) M

IPITNEATS M5o SINEGESRGT AWAAT RS Th SLTIN CRAT

-

SR FOIAVATS SN AN I SRS D o S e Lhrﬁukﬂmah% H

E il bk

ARG SRR e

NETTArD B S
 MOTH RIS et SNATIR,

FRIOEE S R o

g B

APFRIR SRR AT SO PRy MATHESRS g MR w
EEo vl PRI MASS SR AUV NRRES ST L NRTHOEES 3 R 4005 AR ) H

TLLEH NRONT S KOS FIATREUST R ) G550 51 LENT SRy =
TEXRE FrInOZN LIDNASIT TP GDOAN LYNSINIGD 28 ¥IE =

FEAGSPIOES i !U.jn..nxxn,.rr Rt

.a.m.: HATIT RGEED DAY GTERE -

Oy
A EIATMIO0 (R PRGN Shodl AT SNFARISETS A6 WG 1
ERNIATANOT INENZEE O UINAISE Thr 30 AT o LNERRES TML -

P
SR SRRFALAOND 0 ERERSISR DN YT MR 20T SO R
(=R e TENED T SGNUM GEMERGAT BN ATl -

3 X D Nnmd-ﬂl-umffﬁnvml‘%?u a3 el
To TR BV RS AT VA B0 MY 4D W OT0 STl asLasy or

H

SE RS D
TEOE T 2w W Yo h FT W OTY RIr 39 SMISDiEd | oFans

ALl 3N CERAAE

T Tl 23N LTG0
TEEE W oEine

I BRI PG MUSRMET SDMD LT NI -

TNGLEEADAE AT R

THR

AET ATM A2 JMRE e e
AWT AL Zanuy
TR AAS AR QNS
ANEAY Al TS
wSdy N EfT 255

A .4....!1(..%?

e
w..b;%ﬂuuw..ﬂ _ﬂ.w. %ﬂp FEF o




VIEL - Page 3

Prepared by/Retwrn to:
Rachel 5. Gunther, Esq.
147 N, Church Street
Hertford, NC 27944

Parcel No: Portion Cut of 4-0052-0001A and Portion Out of 4-0052-6002

This Deed was prepared without the benefit of a title search and without the advice of the tax
consequences of this trangfer. |
DEED OF GIFT
Minor Subdivision

This Deed made this . day of , 2025, by and between
GRANTOR GRANTTE
WILLIAM H. HOWELL and wife SHANNON COSTON
ERNESTINE PATRICIA HOWELL; and | 1027 New Hope Road
JACOB IDES WILLS (unmarried) Hertford, NC 27944

The designation Grantors and Grantee as used herein shall include said parties, their heirs,
successors, and assigns, and shall include singular, plural, masculine, feminine or neuter as
required by context.

WITNESSETH, that the Grantors, for and in consideration of the mutual agreements by the parties
herewith, and other goods and valuable considerations, does hereby bargain, sell, grant and
convey, with GENERAL WARRANTY, unto the Grantee, the following described property and
improvements, lying and being in the New Hope Township, Perquimans County, North Carohna
and more particularly described as follows:



VL1.C, - Page 2

Being that certain 1.00 acre, delincated as LOT B, as shown on the plat
prepared by T. A. Stokely, PLLC, Registered Surveyor, PLS L-2183, dated

Ol / G ?)/ 20 OJ“;’ “Eetober—4,~-2023: and entitled “Minor Subdivision Survey For Shannon
Coston, Portion of Tract 11 — D.B, 424, PG, 735 ~ Portion of PID; 4-0052-
GO01A, Portion of Tract 12 — D.B. 424, PG, 754 — Portion of PID: 4-6052-0002.
The plate described herein is recorded in Plat Book _ , Page |
Perquimans County Registry.

There is also conveyed herein a 45° wide ingress, egress, and utility easement
as shown on said Plat. Said easement hereby granted is appurtenant to and
runs with the land being conveyed to the Grantee.

But this conveyance is made subject to the following restrictions which shalt run
with the land: That prior to the sale or transfer of the aforesaid lot and right-of-way to
anyone other than the Grantors or either of them or to a child or grandchild of the Grantors,
the aforessd lot shall be brought into compliance with the Subdivision Regulations of
Perquimans County in eftect at the time of the recording of the present Deed of Gift,
. Including, but not limited to, regulations that require the construction of a paved access
road to the lot and the installation of required utilities. However, these restrictions will not
apply to any transfer made to secure a loan or to any sale or transfer of the property as part
of a foreclosure proceeding or to any subsequent sale or transfer by a Mortgagee who or
which has purchased the property at a foreclosure sale. o htirs @ 0
Vilfi7 7,
For reference and chain of title see Deed Book 424, Page 735, and Deed Book(424, Page
of the Perquimans Co&:\gty Registry. For further reference Grantors William H. Howell and |
Frnestine Patricia H.DWGI](?; owners of Perquimans County parcel number 4-0052-0001A and
are conveying a .82 +/- acre portion of said parcel. Jacob ldes Wills is the owner of Perquimans
County Parcel number 4-0052-0002 and is conveying a .18 +/- acre portion of said parcel (for
ownership record of said parcel see Perquimans County foreclosure file 158P45 wherein the
property was sold by substitute trustee to Jacob Ides Wills). ‘ '

Title to the property hereinabove described is subject to the following exceptions:
All restrictions and easements of record.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD, the above-described real estate together with all rights,
privileges and appurtenances thereunto belonging, including riparian rights as appropriate, to the
said Grantees herein named and to them, their heirs, successor and assigns in fee simple, absolute,

forever.



VLI.C, - Page 3

And the Grantors covenant with the Grantees, that Grantors are seized of the premises in
fee simple, have the right to convey the same in fee simple, that title is marketable, and that
Grantors will warrant and defend the title agamast the lawful! claims of all persons whomsoever

except for the exceptions herein stated.

[FHE REST OF THIS PAGE BAS INTENTIONALLY BEEN LENT BLANK]



WhiE - Page 4

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the Grantors have hereunto set their hand and seal, the day and
year first above written.

+ * . \\‘\‘“\\ﬂ"‘ C E"”"”"f;,
L Mo L) Dy SRERTE S (L,
WILLIAM 5, HOWELL ‘ ST TR
Grantor £y / NC}TAF-W (YRS
:E%". Pugrie” (o3
ER S F
.%Q‘{x—:\“ "?02-!3 'p‘,.,'k‘lc':.:'
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA % g e S
COUNTY OF PERQUIMANS, to wit:

VS COT

”'Nuun\l““\
I, @ Notary Public of the City and State aforesaid, certify that WILLIAM H. HOWELL,

personally appeared before me this day and acklmwlmﬁdgied the execution of the foregoing

, , ) A . 3l
instrument. Witness my hand and official stamp, tlns._zwj; day of U}:& i{j , 2023 MLB’% L
4
) -
. - ; 1 L __,f +
h% {LﬂﬁL fgf! cGiﬁ?JfL
NOTARY PUBLIC v
My Commission Expil.'c:s:(ta.’fﬁ'{fimi’ v {0 2@2‘(‘ T,
4 T \‘“‘“ '\G E’h"‘-"
SKAYES
. A BT AN
ey 7 1§ R LA
o ~ il flr /’ s .};ft Fy ] : ‘,..S"‘:
%ﬂ@ﬂa@?fﬁ;m,u T Hfm,-ﬁé«{ £ v i(ShiFary LA
ERNESTINE PATRICTA HOWEE], 0. PuBLe SF
Grantor 0N ard
S &
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA " dNS GOV

COUNTY OF PERQUIMANS, to wit:

I, a Notary Public of the City and Siate aforesaid, certify that ERNESTINE PATRICIA

HOWELL personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the execution of the
foregoing  instrument. Witness my hand and official stamp, this 2_,_5';{1 day of

f %} g f‘x’éz@/\

NOTARY PUBLIC ~ _/

My Commission Expires:';my&& - / 52.‘2“{_)27(

dofg



YiLL, - Page 5

Q aeols Qdes 1) LM (SEAL)

@LOB IDES WILLS
Tantor

STATE OF NORTH CARQLINA
COUNTY OF P-PHQ‘BMW 1o Wit:
Ning law

[, a Notary Public of the City and State aforesaid, certify that JACOB IDES WILLS

personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the execution of the foregoing
instrument. Witness my hand and official stamnp, this Q‘it‘dd}’ of _ J'M“'{ - 2023

D)

; Ak‘cv“’mauc

Moy 13, <had

My Commission Expires:

THUY T, VINSOM
Matary Public - Morth Caroling y
Onslow County

My Commission Expires Nav 12, 2028 B

Sofg



WAL, - Pase 6

Prepared by/Return to:
Rachel 5. Gunther, Esq.
147 N, Church Street
Heartford, NC 27944

45 foor wide Right of Way Easement (New Hope Road) across portion of Perquimans County
tax Parcels: 4-0052-0001L, 4-00352-00018, 4-0052-0001C, 4-0052-0002, and 4-0052-00014 to
provide ingressiegress/utilities for Perquimans County Tax Parcel (TRD COSTON

PROFPERTY),

_ Parcel No.; 4-0052-8001L, 4-0052-0001B, 4-0052-0001C, 4-0052-0002, and 4-0052.0001 A

DEED OF NON-EXCLUSIVE PERPETUAL RIGHT OF WAY/EASEMENT

THIS DEED OF NON-EXCLUSIVE PERFETUAL RIGHT OF WAY/EASEMENT, made
this _ dayof . 2024, by and between, AGATHIA WILLS (single, as sole heir to
the Estate of Robert Leon Wills), LEWELLYN STALLINGS WILLS and wife MARGARET
WILLS, SHIRLEY ANN WILLS SMITH (widow), JACOB WILLS (single), Grantors, and
SHANNON COSTON and future owners of the parcel designated as “LOT B, as shown on the .
piat prepared by T. A, Stokely, PLLC, Registered Surveyor, PLS L-2183, dated Oetoberd,-2623- / %!i’f
and entitled “Minor Subdivision Survey For Shannon Costen, Portion of Tract 11 - D.B. 424, PG,
735 — Portion of PID: 4-0052-0001 A, Portion of Tract 12 — D.B. 424, P(. 754 — Portion of PID:
4-0052-0002. The plate described herein is recorded in Plat Book ., Page |, Perquimans
County Registry”, Grantee, party of the second part,

WHEREAS the Grantors are owners of certain property located in the New Hope
Township, Perquimans County, North Carolina, more specifically: Agatha Wills is the current
owner of Perquimans County Parcel Number 4-0052-0001L, Lewellyn Stallings Wills is the
current owner of Perquimang County Parcel Number 4-0052-0001B, Shirley Ann Wills Smith is
the current owner of Perquimans County Parcel Number 4-0052-0001 C,fJacob Wills, is the current
owner of Perquimans County Parce] Number 4-0052-0002(3f 4=0052-000TA] Howell swns /4

WHEREAS the Grantee 15 the owner of a certain parcel located in the New Hope Township,
Perquimans County, North Carolina. Said property is identified as Perquimans County Parcel
Number [TBD BY COUNTY]. Grantee's property adjoins the land of the Grantors. Whereas the



ViLE, - Page 7

Grantee desires to erect a 457 wide ingress/egress/utility easement over the tand of said Grantors:
and the Grantors herein have agreed to such access.

That in consideration for valuable consideration, the Grantors hereby grant, bargain, sell,
and convey to Grantee, their successors, and assigns, a 45-foot in width, easement of right-of-way
for the purpose of ingress, egress, to N.C.5.R. 1300 “New Hope Road” and installation of utilities
over and upon said casement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the sum of ONE DOLLAR (51.00), and other
good and valuable consideration to them in hand paid, the receipt of which is hereby
acknowledged, the Grantors do hereby give, grant, and convey unto the Grantee, and their heirs
and assigns, a non-exclusive easement, 45-foot in width, along the boundary of Perquimans
County Parcel Numbers 4-0052-00011., 4-0052-0001B, 4-0052-0001C, 4-0052-0002, and 4-
0O52-0001A. '

To have and to hold the aforesaid right and easement to the said Grantec and their
suceessors in title forever; it being agreed that the right and casement hereby granted is appurtenant
to and run with the land now owned by the Grantee and herein referred to.

[THE REST OF THIS PAGE HAS INTENTIONALLY BEEN LEFT BLANK.]



ViLi.C. - Page B

In .”.T 15 \V]lL'Ie( f‘ ] p 2 - S = u

(SEAL)

STATE OF NORITH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF PERQUIMANS, to wit:

I, @ Notary Public of the City and State aforesaid, certify that AGATHIA YWILLS
personally appeared before me this day and acknowledped the execution of the foregoin

instrument. Witness my hand and official stamyp, this I‘ !ﬂ'ﬁ ay of ;EA.[\} %% &
. AL A1 . .-

. . m“;x -
f mgﬁx N
RY PUBLIC N -
CE

NOTA o
',

¥ i,
My Commission Expires:ﬁi__ E’Cﬂﬂ:{:@fl@f _ qu SR "‘*

g

o

v Lo
“NOTAR NG
WOTAR )

Yy,
]

-
e

o

IR E L
S ou3d

X
o
Py
oy

Sa
Sy
=
m:- §
<. 3
A
‘I

)



Vil - Page 8§

In witness whereof, the parties hereunto set their hands and seals, the day and year first
abowve written,

““mmm,,,,

\C & b’"’r,

-:" ‘?\ s, {6} k

A, 0 fE il
S ‘Q{shm.,,) BT

Lr:erLm*’sTA’LuN(,b WILLS Emi NOTARY

(irantor ?;:E,", Ublic ;2

P AN TS

- — R ’*.r_, "'fy‘ " "":5-
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA ¢

w NG GO
COUNTY OF PERQUIMANS, to wit: .

I, & Notary Public of the City and State aforesaid, certify that LEWELLYN STALLINGS

WILLS personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the execution of the foregoing

instrument. Witness my hand and official stamp, this 23_ ay of :TT}" , 2024,
‘;U(U( e By ’)‘ﬁ/m g
. NOTARY PUBLIC -
My Commission Expims:;f#%;mfgﬁ’)j}yr 10, QQZ-{
¥ LanHI

é\\\“«?\“ E \? {”'v'r

-----

£ e 2
gmi NOTapy ™
C;rranto:. %%3‘ PUBL e ',r' f-?“:’
. ""ﬁc:?g*‘n‘?oza »@*
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

*****

COUNTY OF PERQUIMANS, to wit:

[, a Notary Public of the City and State aforesaid, certify that MARGARET WILLS
personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the execution of the [oregoing

instrument. Witness my hand and official stamp, this. ay of :'TE; ( ] 2024,
1
He f,%w/x
. NOTARY PUBLIC A

My Comrnission Expires;

10, 202

Jof10

€]

C o
V¥

frapgppn ittt

gy



VLiLC, - Page 10

UL
) »

‘5\\\1\\ ?}..‘.GE S( .:,’:}
LA NS

/M’fm 4.2 /jf’-’”’ 2l fq,q-"““‘ (SEALR G, %
SHIRLEY ANN WILLS SMITH imi NOTagy, *%°
(irantor %I&x‘ PUBL - ; g :
STATE OF NQ(”\”’] C{m’j {{\(: _ '%Afrsagc;)\) ‘T\ﬁb“‘\
CITY/COUNTY OF "§ rc::,.—;q”,m@ﬂq . to wit:

I, a Notary Public of the City and State aforesaid, certify that SHIRLPY ANN WILLS
SMITH personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the cxccutmu cﬂ”t}m foregoing
instrument. Witness my hand and official stamp, this 2 3 day of U {f j , 2024,

jﬁﬁ: fCF Sn e)iﬂa?fif’:,

NQOTARY PUBLIC

My Commission Expuem(ﬁmb)ﬁ j’{:} Eg)ﬂéf e

Sof10



Vil - Page 11

Daesd— 0 Jlﬁ’o
JACOB WILLS
Grantar

STATEOF [lovth  Car\ies
CITY/COUNTY OF __ Tnglaws

(SEAL}

L o wit:

I, a Notary Public of the City and State aforesaid, certify that JACOB WILLS personally

appeared before me this day and acknowledged the execution of

ie foregoing instrument. Witness
my hand and official stamp, this w""m‘ day of :-T"*L{

2024,

(A

NOTARY FUBLIC —
& JaLy o

THUY T. VINSON
Netary Public - North Carolina
Onslow County B
@ My Commission Expires Nowv 12, 2028 b

My Commission Expires; tav

Bofi0



Wihi.C, - Page 12

““u!l'"nn”

" - _‘,\P\“‘ 'ﬂ o ”””"5-
o il Lt SQPASEAR S,
H{ANNON COSTON S L AR
Cnantm E'g | NQTARW EYE
ERL Pug 'O F
% Q »‘ Lfc J» :_:_-
STATE OF Mﬂr% Cﬂ(’f‘ rm__ Yo e o5
CITY/COUNTY OF 3 i s, to wit ik fvlé‘ :“45\3&\“\\*‘

'”Hmunl‘“

I, a Notary Public of the City and State aforesaid, certify that SHANNON COSTON
personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the execution of the foregoing

instrurnent. Witness my hand and official stamp, this '2!-';1*5 “day of m {(j , 2024,

";%m;»a &S bk

NOTARY PUBLIC
My Commission Expires:'aﬂ&%mi/xﬁf }Q{ Q{JZ,‘]’L

‘ t'.‘* ?‘ LT T { ’J’".-
/ fp . - é‘e Q i" Qamm- F"th - J::L
/ m‘f . W— ; *““;J (SEAR. S

£

TYLVOICE COSTON smy VOTamy "} %
A4 Pug SN
Grantor 2 % \ Lic /3§
%G 2o N
STATE OF /\!W—”“\ W@ W\ ’*fff’;?f\,é' 66‘\5{:*“‘\\
CITY/COUNTY OF fggﬁ?mm IS, to wit: g

I, a Notary Public of the City and State aforesaid, certify that TYLVOICE COSTON
personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the exccutmn of the foregoing

instrument. Witness my hand and official stamp, thijﬂ day of < _jiily , 2024

- Pieeo < B\ (%J/’“}’J

NOTARY PUBLIC

My Commission Expires: ML{'

10af10



LA - Page i

moffatt & nichol S MIN CLIENT AGF

AGREEMENT BETWEEN CLIENT AND CONSULTANT
FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

THIG AGREEMENT is made cnthe _ day of August, 2025, by and between, Perquimans County herginafter
called "Client”, with an office at 128 N, Church Street, Hertford, North Caroling 27044, and Moffait & Nichal, a
California corporation, registered in the Slate of North Carolina as Moffatt & Nichot Inc., hereinafter called
"Consultant”, for the following Project (the "Project’): Perquimans County Marine industrial Park Dredging and
Shoreling Stabilization. Client and Consultant may be referred to individually as a "Party” or collectively as the
“Parties”,

The Client and Consultant for mutual consideration agree as set forth helow:
1. CONSULTANT'S SERVICES

The Consultant shall perform professional services In conngction with the Project, as set forth below, and as
described i Exhibit "A” Statement of Services,

2. CONSLH.TANT'S CHARGES

The Consultant shalt provide professions| services for which the Client shall compensate Engineer and
the: total compensation shall not exceed the dollar amount indicated herein, and as may be further
described in Exhibit *B8".

E o LUMP SUmM. Compensation for these services shall be a Lump SumiFixed Fee amourt
of § 127.727.
3 INSURANCE AND LIABHITY PROVISIONS

3.1, The Consultant maintaing appropriate and commercially available insurance coverage o Insure the
oparations and sarvices of the Consultant as follows: statutory Worker's Compensation and
Employer's Liability, Commerclal Genaral Liability; and Professional Liability insurance,

3.2, The Client agrees to fimit the Consullant's liability to the Client and to all other contractors and
subcontractors on the Project, due to the Consultant's negligent acts, errors or omissions, such that
the total aggregate Fakility of the Consultant to those named shall not exceed the Cansultant's tatal
foe paid by the Client for the services rendared on this Project.

3.3. Neither party shall have any claim or right against the other under this Agreaement, whether in
contract, warranty, tort (including negligence), strict liability or otherwise, for any special, indiract,
incidental, or consequential damages howsoever caused, even if same were reasanably
foreseeable.

4, CLIENT'S RESPONSIBHLITY

The Clignt shall, unless otherwise pravided for in this Agreement, at no cost to the Consultant:

4.1, Furnish o the Consultant all reports, survey soils data, Project information and materlals, as well as
other information or documentation as rmay be requested by Consultant, and upon which Cansultart
may reasonably rely,

O1-2025



XA - Page 2

maoffatt & nichol

SREEMENT - BABIO

4.2, Unless expressly stated in Exhibit A, the Consultant makes no tepresentations conceming soil
conditions and is nol responsible for any liability that may arise out of the performance or fallure to
perform soils investigations and testing,

4.3. Provide or arrange for full and free access for the Consuilant to enter upon all property required for
the performance of the Consultant's services.

4.4, Give prompt written notice to the Consultant whenever the Clhent obsarves or otherwise becomes
aware of any defect in the Projeci or other event which may substantially affect the Consultant's
performance of services under this Agresment,

5. REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES

Relmbursable &xpenses are in addition to Consullant's compensation for services performed on an Hourly Rate
basis and include expenditures made by the Consultant, its employees ot its subconsultants in the perfarmance of
services on the Project. The Compensation amount set out under Article 2 includes the cost for Reimbursable
Expenses for the services set out under Exhibit A,

B. PAYMENTS TO THE Consultant

8.1,

B.2.

8.3.

6.4

8.5.

- 2085

FPragress payments shall be made in proportion to services rendered or as olherwise indicated
within this Agreement and shall be due and owing within thirty (30) days upon the Consultant's
subinittal of any invoice. Past due amounis owed shall include a late payment Finance Charge
which will be computed at the periodic rate of 1% per month, which is an Annual Percentage Rate of
12%, and witl be applied to any unpaid balance forty-five (45) days after the date of the originat
invoice.

The Consuitant may, upon seven {7) days written notice, suspend services if Client fails to make
paymaents,

No deductions, set-off ar withhalding shalf be made fram the Consultant's compensation on account
of penalty or any other sums that may be withheld by the Client from payments to conlractors,

Hourly Rates and Reimbursable Expenses shall be subject to periodic revision as stated on the
Consultant’s Hourly Rate Schedute included in Exhibit B, In the svent revisions are made during
the lifetime of thia Agreemant, the increased or decreased bourly Rates and Reimburgable
Expenses shall apply to all remaining compensgation for services perforrned by the Consultant when
such rales provide the basis for the Consultant's compenssation,

If the Project is delayed, or if the Consultant's services for the Project are delayed or suspended for
more than three {3) months for reasons beyond the Consultant's control, the Consultant may, after
giving seven (7} days written notice to the Client, terminate this Agreement and the Clisnt shall
sormpensate the Consultant in accordance with the termination provision contained hereinafter in
this Agreement. Consuftant may agree to continuation of the Agreement, subject to adjustmeants in
compensation and schedule due to such suspension or delay.



7.

M. A - Page 3

moffait & nichot

7.1.

7.2.

7.3,

7.4,

7.5,

7.6.

7.7.

7.8.

7.9,

2005

MY - BAGIT

 MNCLIENT AGH

GENERAL PROVISIONS

All Drawings, Specifications and other work data of the Consultant for this Project are instruments of
service for this Project only and shall remain the property of the Consuitant whether the Project is
completed or not. The Client shall not reuse any of the Consultant's instruments of service on
extensions of this Project or an any other project without the prior written permission of the
Consultant. Any unauthorized reuse shall be at the Client's sale risk and the Client agrees to
defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Consultant from al claims, damages, and expenses
including reasonable attorney's fees arising out of such unauthorized reuse of the Consultant's
instrurnents of service by the Client or by others acting through or on behalf of the Client,

Nether the Client nor the Consuitant shall delegate their duties under this Agreement without the
written consent of the ather, such consent to not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditionad.

This Agreement may be terminaied by either Party by seven (7) days written notice in the event of
substantial faillure to perfarm in accordance with the terms of this Agreement by the other Party
through no fault of the tarminating Party, If this Agreement is terminated, the Consultant shali be
paid for alt services performed up to and including the termination effective date insluding
Reimbursable Expenses incurred, plus reasenable termination expenses. Termination Expenses
are defined as costs incurred directly attributable o termination and may include non-cancellable or
non-refundable obligations,

This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between the Clignt and the
Consullant and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or
oral. This Agreemsnt may be amended only by wiitten instrument signed by both the Glient and the
Constltant,

Any dispute or claim ariging out of this Agreament shail be determined as follows: Client and
Consultant will negotiate in good faith to reach agreement. If negotiations are unsuccessful,
Consultant and Client agree the dispute shall be settfed by mediation. In the avent the dispute ar
any issues remain unresolved, the disagreement shall be decided by such remedies of law as they
are available o the Parties. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of
California,

Should litigation oceur between the two Parties relating to the provislons of this Agreement, all
litigation expenses, collection expenses, witness fees, court costs and reasonable altormey's fees
incurred by the prevailing Party shalt be paid by the non-prevailing Party to the prevailing Party.

Neither Party shall hold the other responsible for damages or delay in performance caused by acts
of God, fire, flood or other natural catastrophe; acts of any governmental body, defays in permitting,
strikes, labor disputes or shortage, lockouts, accidents, national emergency, insurrection, riot, war,
epidemic, pandemic, or other events beyond the control of the other Party or the other Party's
employeas, or agents,

In the event any provisians of this Agreement shall be held to be invalid and ungnforceable, the
ramaining provisions shall be valid and binding upon the Parties. One or maore waivers by either
Party of any provision, term, condition or covenant shall not be construed by the other Party as a
waiver of a subsequent bregach of the same by the other Party.

The Consultant is not responsible for design and construction review services relating to any
construction contractor's safety precautions or to the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or
procedures required for a construction contractor to perform its work. Consultant Is not responsible
for overall site safety. Omitted services under this Agreement include but are not limited to shoring,
scaffolding, underpinning temporary retainment of excavations and any erection methods and
temporary bracing.



X.A - Page 4

NN CLIENT AGREEMENT - BASIC

matfatt & nichol
7.10. The Consultant intends to render its services under this Agreement in accordance with that level of
sklll and care ordinarily exercized by simitar situatad professional firms who are performing the
same of similar services, under the same or similar circumstances, and makes no wartanty either
express or implied.

7.11. Any estimate of construction costs or estimates of materials quantities reviewed, approved or
prepared by the Consultant under this Agreament represents its judgment as a design professianal
and Is supplied for the general guidance of the Client, Since the Consultant has no control over the
costs of labor or materials, or aver competitive bidding or market conditions, of over purchases
made by the canstruction contractor, the Consultant does not guarantee the accuracy of such
astimates as compared o construction contractor bids or actual cost to the Client.

7.12. (@) The Partios shall comply with alf applicabie federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, rules,
reguiations, and orders in effect on the date of this Agreement, including any applicable non-lJ.5.
laws and regulations.

{b) Neither Party shall, directly ar indirectly, underlake. cause ar permit to be undertaken any activity
retated to this Agresment that is illegal under any applicable law, reaulation, ordinance or other
governmental reguirement, insluding without limitation, the U.5. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and
{he LIK Bribery Act. In addition, no Party shall give, offer, promise or authorize, directly or indirectly,
in conngction with this Agreement, anything of value to an official, officer, employee or any other
person in an official capacity for or on behalf of any government, state-owned entarprise, agents or
advisars to other international organizations.

{c} If either Party breaches any of the covenants contained in this Article, the non-breaching Party
shall have the right to immediately terminate this Agreement without penalty and shall be
indemnified by the breaching Party against all losses arising under this Article 7,12,

7.13 This Agreement is intended for (he benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective permitied
successors and assigns, and is not for the benefit of, nor may any provision herecf be enforced by,
any other person or entity.

8, NOTICES

Any notices required to be given under this Agreement may be given by enclosing the same in a sealed envelope,
postage prepaid, addressed as follows:

Client: Perquirrtans Lounty
128 N, Churech Streat
HMertford, Narth Carolina 27944
Attention:  Mr. Erank Meath
Consultant: Moffatt & Nichol -

4700 Falls of Neuse Road, Suite 300
_Raleigh, North Carolina 27609

Attention: Patrick Graney

2005 4



IX.A - Page &

maoffalt & nichol

Notices shalt be deposited in the U.5. Postal Service. When so given, stich notice shall be considered given as of
fiva (5) days from the time of maiting the same,

Each Party covenants by their signatures balow that the individual signing has been given proper authority to sign
this Agreerment and bind their crganization to the terms therein,

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the Parties hareto have executed this Agreement which iz in effect as of the
day and year first above written when signed by bolh Parties,

Motfatt & Nichol __Perguimans County
Consultant Client
EHH;EA——’\
By: ot TN By:
JName: | Patrick Graney, PE Name.  Frank Heath
Title, Vice President ‘ Tithe; County Manager

(2005 Y



moffatt & nichol

EXHIBIT “A"
STATEMENT OF SERVICES

See Attached Proposal

X A

MM LLEENT AGRE

- Page &

EMENT - BASIC

4]



.4 - Page 7

4700 Falls of Meuse Road, Suite 300
Ralaigh, NC 27609

Rl ¥

[ BRI R X PO

{10) TRI-4626 Fax (9444 Tl 488n
A KON

Vi g

August 15, 2025

Rerquimans County
128 N. Church Street
Hertford, North Caroling 27944

Attn;  Frank Heath
County Manager

Re: Perquimans County Marine Industrial Park — Shoreline Stabilization & Channel Dredging
Hertford, North Carolina
Professional Engineering Services - Proposal

Dear Mr. Heath;

Muoffatt & Nichol (MA&N) appreciates the
oppoertunity to support Perguimans County on this
project to stabilize the northwest and northeast
shorelings adjacent to the newly constructet basin
at the Marine Industriat Park and prepare dredging
tdocurnents for deepening an access channel
connecting thi center channel of the Perguimans
River to the new inland basin. The work covered
under this proposal consists of topographic and
hydrographic surveying, environmental permitting,
design, and construction support services for the
shoreline stabilization and dredging identified on
the figures to the right.

The existing shoreline is experiencing scouring and
erosion due to wind-generated waves and boat
wakes along the Perquimans River. This seope of
waork involves designing a 275-foot long section of
riprap revetment that will connect the existing
riprap shoreling at the northwestern corver of the
basin entrance to the existing riprap shoreline at
the boat ramp located to the west. A shorter
section of riprap will be instalted on the northeast
corner of the basin entrance, extending
approximately 100 feet to the east to mitigate
lacalized erosion within the property fimits.

The approach from the center of the river to the
basin is too shallow to navigate with deeper draft




A - Page 8

Perquimans County Marine Industrial Park
Shoreline Stabifiration & Dredging

vessels. The dredging task involves performing a hydrographic survey to map the riverbed along the
proposed approach channel. The survey results will be used to locate and design a 100-foot-wide
channel dredged to EL -10 NAVD as shown in biue in the previous figure. It is anticipated that the
dredged material will be dewatered and stockpited at the existing stockpile area located on the
landside of the hasin,

Specific tasks involve the following:

Task 1: Surveying
MEN will engage Mclim & Creed out of Raleigh to perform a topographic survey of the two
sections of the proposed shoreline areas which provides the basks for the proposed site plan and
shoreline stabilization design.  They will also perform a hydrographic survey of the proposed
approach channel areas which provides the basis for the dredging construction documents.

Task Z: Environmental Permitting
a. Field Review: One M&N environmental staff member will conduct a site visit to the proposed
project site to evaluate existing conditions, obtain the necessary information for preparation of
required permit application packages, and to gain an understanding of the project. if additional
envirenmental studies outside of this scope of work are required, they will be noted at the
completion of the site visit,

b, Agency Coordination: M&N will conduct a virtual meeting with representatives of state and
federal regulatory and resource agencies in advance of preparing the permit application
package. Due to the simplicity of the project, a pre-application scoping meeting is not
envisioned with the permitting agencies.

¢ Permit Application Package Preparation and Submittal: It is anticipated that the proposed
project will require a modification of the existing active permits that were obtained for the
construction of the basin, M&N shail prepare the permit application package and associated
drawings for the acquisition of a modified Coastal Area Management Act {CAMA) Major Permit.
This application package will also serve as the application package for a Section 404 (Clean
Water Act)/Section 10 (Rivers and Marbors Act) Permit from the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
(USACE), and the accompanying Section 401 {Clean Water Act) Certification from the Divisien
of Water Resources. This approach assumes that the project dogs not require an individual
{Standard} permit. Should the USACE determine that an Individual (Standard} Permit be
required for the proposed project, additionat scope and fee coordination between M&N and
the County will be required.

Following completion of the draft application packages and comments received from County
on the draft package the final submittal packape signed by the County will be submitted to
NCDCM through the NCOCM online permit application portal.

d. Additional Agency Coordination During Application Review Process: M&N will prepare one

series of responses to agency comments or requests for additional information during the
regutatory review process.

Page 2



LA - Page 9

Perguirnans County Marine Industrial Park
Shoreline Stabilization & Dredging

Task 3:

Design and Construction Documerts

The design and development of construction documents will include detailed drawings,
specifications, and contract provisions for both the revetment and dradging cormponents. These
documents will be structured as one project to streamline the engineering effort but allow the
contractor to provide seperate pricing for each component. This approach ensures flexibility in
project execution should budget constraints prevent simultaneous completion of both elements.

d,

Fask 4:

Task 5;

Design: ME&N will design shoreline protection based on site conditions and available material
considering water depth, surge, and wave height. M&N will also perform the dredging design
based on site conditions considering logistics, dredging method, and handling of material.
Construction Drawings: M&N will proceed with developing construction drawings for this
project and incorporate relevant permit requirements. The drawings will include the general
notes, site plan, erasion and sediment control drawings, revetment cross sections, and
dredging cross sections.

Construction Specifications: M&N will develop the construction project manual including the
tnformal Contract based on the standard forms provided by the North Carolina State
Construction Office. Technical Specifications will be developed for each of the primary
construction or material components on the project.

Opinion of Probabie Cost; MEN will develop an opinion of probable cost based on recent
project experience, the budgetary estimates, and other available cost sources. A 10%
contingency will be appled te account for variability in bidding.

Quality Assurance/Quality Control: As an 150 9001 certified company, ME&N has a formal
Quality Management Systerm (QMS) and a documented set of Project Management Procedures
that are utilized for every project we complete. This process involves technical reviews of
caleulations, drawings, specifications, and aepinions of probable costs.

Bidding Services

Provide advertisement for bidding, disiribute bid documents to interested contractors, and
maintain a bid document register of contractors whe have received the bid documents,
Conduct the on-site Pre-Bid Conference in Perquimans County and provide meeting minutes to
all attendeas,

Respond to Bidder's questions regarding the bid process in suppert of the county.

Conduct the Bid Opening in Perquimans County inchuding opening and reading bids, creating a
hid tabulation, and providing a bid recommendation letter to the Owner.

On-Site Meetings and Ubservations

The scope of site meetings and construction observations is based on the assumption that both the
revetment and dredging components will e constructed concurrently, If only one component
proceeds at this time, the proposal will need to be revisited and adjusted to account for future
construction activities associated with the remaining component (revetment or dredging).

Attend Pre-Construction Meeting in Perguimans County to review contract requirgments with
the Contractor, establish a notice to proceed date, and provide minutes of information

reviewed.
Perform up to 4 on-site canstruction observations during construetion. The project is assumed

b have a 4-manth duration, so 4 site visits are budgeted,
Perform on-site final inspection of project for project acceptance and clase-out,

Page 3



XA - Page 10

Perquimans County Marine Industrial Park
Shoreline Stabilization & Dredging

Task 6: Contractor Coordination
The scope of contractor coordination is based on the assumption that both the revetrnent and
dredging components will be constructed concurrently. if only one companent proceeds at this
time, the proposat will need to be revisited and adjusted to accournt for future construction
activities associated with the remaining component.

7. Respond to Contractar RFYs and coordinate with the Contractor to ensure the project is
proceeding on schedule, 1t is assurned that the coordination effort is 2 hours per week for the
3-month durstion of the project.

h. Perform technical review of Contractar’s submittals and shop drawings for conformance with
the project drawings and specifications,

c. Review and approve propesals from the Cantractor for Owner requested change orders for the
project.

d. Review monthly applications for payment from the Contractor and forward approved reguests
to the Owner for payment.

Schedule
MEN can complete the Tasks according to the following schedule:
e Task 1: 4-6 weeks after signing contract
o Task 2: Submit permit application 3 weeks after receiving Survey
o Task 3: Complete 6-8 weeks after Task 1.
s Task 4: Initiated 1 week after completing Task 3, but dependent on receiving permit.
o Tasks 5 & 6: Assumed 4-month construction schedule

The professicnal services gutlined in this proposal will be performed on a lump sum basis, with a not to
exceed Himit of $127,727.00, A detailed breakdown of the cost for each task is provided in the foHlowing

table.

Task 1 | Surveying $3,200 |%16,527
Task 2 | Enwironmental Permitting 515,000 51,000
Task 3 | Design and Construction Documents 560,000 N/A
i Task 4 | Bidding Services 185000 5500
Task 5 | On-Site Meetings and Observation N 512,500 $2,000
Task 6 | Contractor Coordination _1%$10,000 N/A
Total Fee: | 5127,727

Assumptions

a. This proposal excludes any permitting fees associated with the project.
b. Bidding services assure one cycle of bidding, additional rebideding witl be an additional fee.
c. Construction services are for 4 months maximum,

Pape 4



M. A - Page 11

Perguimans County Marine Industrial Porik
Shoreline Stabilization & Dredging

d. This scope assumes that the project will not require the preparation of an environmental
document, biological assessment, or essential fish habitat assessment. Should one or more of
these documents be required as a part of the permit application review process, additional
scope and fee coardination between M&N and the County will be required.

e. This scope assumes that the project will not reguire a variance from either the NC Coastal
Resources Commission or the NC Environmental Management Comrission. Should a variance
be required from either of these entities, additional scope and fee coordination between M&N
and the County will be required,

ME&N's services shall he limited to those exprescly set forth above, and ME&N shall have no other
obligations or responsibilities for the Project except as agreed to in writing or as provided in this
Agreement. f you have any gquestions or need additional infarmation, plesse do not hesitate to
contact me at {919} 645-0640,

Sincerely,
MOFFATT & NICHOL

=3

Patrick Graney, P.E.
Vice President

Page 5



MB.1 - Page

s i ) X L I T e ey et Bty S tarr

Consulting Services Agreement

By and Between

Perguimans County, NC
i

Evergreen Solutions, LLC

This Agesmeant (the "Ageement™), dated as of August 11, 2025, 15 made by and between BEvergreen
Sotutions, LLC, a Flonda corporation ("Evergreen”), and Perquimans County (be "Client™),

WHEREAS, Evergreen Solutions and the Client desire to enterinto an agreement whereby Evergraen will

s g g Y &
provide coain management consulting serviees for the Clicnt on the terins and conditions hereinafter set
Forth: and

WHEREAS, Evergreen Solutions is willing to provide such management consulting services for the
Client.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Engagement. Bvergreen Solutions hereby agrees to provide such management consulting seyvices for
the Client as miay be reasonably requested by the Clicsl in connection with the Letfer Proposal submitted
by Evergreen Solutions on March 3, 2025 {t.e., Exhibit A).

2. Extent of Services. Evergreen Solutions agrees to perform such services to the best of its ability and in
a dihgent and conscientious manaer and (o devote appropriate thme, energics and skill to those dutics
called Tor hereunder during the term ofthis Agreement and in conncction with the perfonmance of such
duties to act in a manner consigtent with the primary objective of completing the engagement,

Evergreen Solutions agrees to devote such time as is reasonably required to fulfill its duties hereunder,
Throughout the duration of this agreement, Evergreen Solutions will serve as an independent conlractor
of the Client, as such; Evergreen Solutions will obey all laws relating to federal and state income taxes,
associated payroll and business taxes, licenses and fees, workers compensation insurance, and all other
applicable state and federal laws and regulations.

Page 1

i



B4 - Page 2

In the suceesstul campletion of this engagement, Evergreen Solutions may utilize subcontractors, but
Evergreen Solwtions shall vemain completely responsible o the Chent For performance under this
Agreemnent,

3. Ternw The engagement of the Consultant hereunder by Client shall commence ag of the date heveof
and shall contitrue throngh December 31, 2025, unkess carlier terminated, pursuant o Section 3 hereat.

4. Compensation,

(a) As compensation for the services contamplated hercin and for performance rendered by Evergreen
Solutions of it duties and obligations hercunder, the Client shall pay to Evergreen Solutons an aggregaie
fee equal 10 $33.500 (the "Consuliing Fee™, earned and payable according o the following
invoice/payment schedule:

L]

25% ~ upon completion of Tagks {1 -2
25% - upon completion of Tasks 3
25% - upon completion of Tasks 5 - 6
13% -~ upon completion of Tasks 7 -8
10% ~ upon complietion of Tasks 9 11

ks

e & & 8 =

(b} The Client’s sole obligation shall be oy pay Evergreen Solutions the amounts described in Seciion 4(a)
of this Agreement, and the Consuliant is not and shall not be deemed an employee of the Client for any
PUTPOEE,

5. Termination. This Agreement shall be tenmingted as follows:

(a} 30 days after written notice of termination 35 given by either party at any time after August FE 2025,
provided however, that if the Chent shall terminate this Agreement pursuant to this Section 5(83 Tor any
reason other than Consaltant's material breach of this Agreement (having given prior notice of, and
reasonable apportunity for Consultant to cure, any such breach), Client shall pay to consubtant in one
Jmp st an amouat equal to that portion of the aggregate Conselting Fee which has not been paid 10
Consuliant as of the effective date of such wrmimation.

{b) On such date as is mutually agreed by the parties in writing.
{¢) Upon expiration of the Tenn as set forth in Sechon 3.

i Client elects to terminate for material breach then Client shall pay to consultant in one lump sum an
amount equal only to that for which services have been rendered.

Upon termination of this Agresment purstiant to this Section 5, except as contemplated by Section 5(a) in
the event Client terminates this Agreement in the absence of continuing material breach hereof by
Consultant, Consultant shall be entitled to payment ot only that portion of the Consulting Fee eamed
through the effective date of such termination and any portion of the Lump Sum Payment which has not
been paid to Consoltant as of the effective date of soeh termination,

6. Confidential Information, Evergreen Solutions shall not, at any time during or following expiration or
termination of its engagement hereunder (regardiess of the manner, reason, time or cause thereo ) directly
or indirectly disclose or fumish to any person not entitled to receive the same for the imediate benefit of
the Chient any trade secrets or confidential information as determined by the Client in writing.

%

ﬁy L
‘ = Page 2



B3 - ¥Page 3J

T. Covenants, Evergroen Solutions agrees to (a) faithfolly sud dilisently do and perfonm the acts and
duties reguired in connection with its engagement hereunder, and {b) not engage in any activity which is
or likely is contrary (o the welfare, interest or benefit of the business now or hereafter conducted by the
Chient,

8. Binding Effect. This Agreement will inure 1o the benelit of and shali be binding upon the parties
hereto and their cespective saccessors or assigns (whether resufting from any re organization,
coasalidation or merger of cither of the parties or any assignoient (0 & business to which all or
substansially il of the assels of gither parly are sold).

4. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including the letter proposal, contains the entire agreement and
understanding of the partics with respect to the subject matter hereof, supersedes all prior agreements and
understandings with respect thercto ond cannot be modified, amended, waived or terminated, in whole or
in part, exceptin wriling signed by the party to be charged.

1, Wotices, All notices required to be given under the terms of this Agreement or which any of the
parties desires w ogve bereunder shall be inwriting and personally delivered or sent by registered o
certifiad mail, return receipt requested, or sent by facsimile transmission, addressed as follows:

(a1 to Bvergreen Solutions addressed to:

Evergreen Solutons, LLC
Attention: Dr. JefT Ling, President
2528 Barrington Circle, Unit 201
Tallahassee, Florida 32308

{h.)If to the Client addressed o

Perquimans County

Attention: Cascy White, Human Resoureas Coordinator
PO Box 45

Hertford, North Carolina 27944

Any party may designats s change of address at any tme by giving written notice thereof to the other
pAtics.

11. Miscellapeous. This Agreement:

{a) shall be binding wpon and inure to the benefit of the parties heroto and their respective successors and
perntitted assigns;

(i} may not{except as provided in Section 9 hereof) be assigned by either party hereto without the prior
wrilten consent of the other party (any purported assignment hereol i violation of this provision being
null and void);

{¢) may be executed in any mumber of connterparts, and by any party on separate counterparts, cach of
which as so executed and dehivered shall be deemed an original butall ofwhich together shall constitute
ofie and the same instrument, and it shall not be necessary in making proof of this Agreement as to any
party hereto to produce or account formore than one such counterpart executed and delivered by such
party;

i .%%
ke
sl Fage 3



8.1 - Page 4

{(dymay be amended, modificd orsupplemented onby by o written instrament executed by alb ofthe partics
hereto; and

(e} embodies the entirg agreement and understanding of the parties hereto in respect of the transactions
conternplated liereby and supersedes @il prior agreernenis and understandngs among the parties with

respect thereto,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the partics hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date first above
writhesi.

Bvergreen Selutions, LLO

Fett Ling, President

Perquimesns County

'%,
=

- Page 4



W oy
i i

:
3 ]
ey
N

ool R
s rrnda

WMarch 3, 2025

Casey White

Hitman Resources Coordinator
Perquimans County

P.O. Box 45

Hertford, North Caroling 27944

seyvyiibednercuimanseouniyno soy

SUBMITTED VIA EMAIL; ¢

Dear Ms. White:

We appreciate the opportunity to submit a letter proposal to conduct a Classification and/or
Compensation Study for Perquimans County. | have prepared a work plan autlining the tasks,
activities, and milestones necessary to accomplish this study as well as a proposed timelite and
cost. Evergreen understands the County has approximately 200 employess in 50 classifications,

Detailed Work Plan

Task 1.0 TASK GOALS
Project Initiation
« Finalize the project plan with the County.

s Gather alt pertinant data.
» Finglize any remaining confractual negotiations,

« Establish an agreeable final timeline for all project milestones and
deliverables,

TASK ACTIMITIES

1.1 Digcuss withi the County's Project Manager (CPM) and any other
key personnet the following objectives:

e review our proposed methodology, approach, and project work
plan to identify any necessary revisions,

e« reach agreement on & schedule for the project including ail
assignments and project miestones/deliverables;

e establish an agreeable communication schedule,

1.2 identify potential challenges and opportunitios for the study.
Discuss the strategic direction of the County and some of the
short- and long-term priorities. This activity serves as the basis for
assessing where the County s going and what type of pay plan will
reinforce current and future goals,

Py v -
Page 1 of 9 www. Consultbvergreen.com



B2 - Page 2

1.3 Obtain relevant materiais from the Counly, including:

»  any previous projects, research, evaluations, or other studies
that may be relevant 1o this project;

+ organizational charts for the departmants and divisions, along
with related responsibility descriptions: and

= current position and classification descriptions, and salary
schedule(s).

1.4 Review and eglt the project wark plan and submit a schedule for
the completion of each project task.

KEY PROJECT MILESTONES
e Comprehensive project management plan

¢ Comprehensive database of County statf and County
Commissioners

Task 2.0 TASK GOAL
Evaluate the
Gurrent System e Conduct a conmprehensive preliminary evaluation of the existing

compensation and classification system for the County.
TASK ACTIVITIES

2.1 Obtain the existing pay structure and compensation philosophy (if
any). Review the existing pay structure and look for potential
probilems and issues to be resolved,

2.2 Discuss the strengths and weaknesses of the current pay plan(s)
for the County. Discuss any pay compression issues that may exist
and possible solutions with the CPM,

2.3 jdentify the compensation philosophy of the County.

2.4 Complete an assessment of current conditions that details the
pros and cons of the surrent aystem for the County as well as
highlights areas for potential improvement in the final adopted
solution.

KEY PROJECT MILESTONES
¢ Review of existing compensation plan(s)

o Assessment of current conditions

Page 2z of g




B2 - Page 3

Task 3.0 TASK GOALR

Coltect and Review

Currant Environment s Conduct statistical and anecdotal resgarch into the current
Data gnvironment within the County.

v Guide subsequent analytical tasks,
TASK ACTIVITIES

3.1 Schedute and conduct employee crientation sessions 1o describe the
scope of work and methodology.

3.2 Interview department and County Commissionars to obtain refevant
information and statistical/anecdatal data on specific compansation
issues and policies. Obtain insight into percaived current
compensation system strengths and weaknesses,

3.3 Hald focus groups with a sample of employees to obtain additional
relevant information and siatisticat/anecdotal daia on specific
compensation issues and policies.

3.4 Waork with the CPM and Human Resources staff to administer the
JATs and MiTs. Our staff utilizes a web-based tool for data collection,
hut we can provide paper copies as well as those for classifications
without computers or Internet access. We will seek approval from
the CPM hefore distribution of the JAT/MIT questionnaire,

3.5 Review any data provided by the County that may provide additional
relevant insight.

KEY PROJECT MILESTONES

a Job azsessment tool distribution

« Depariment head/Couniy Commissioner inferviews

= Employee focus groups and orientation sessions

Task 4.0 TASK GOALS

Evaluate and Build ) _

Projected e Identify the classification of existing positions utilizing the approved
G{a%iﬁcatinn P!an mﬂthﬂd for jﬂb Eva‘uation,

and Make FLSA

Determinations » Characterize internal equity relationships within the County.

TASK ACTIVITIES

4,1 Ensure that all class specifications have been provided to Evergreen
by the CPM.

4.2 Review the work performed by sach classification and score based on
job avaluation. Include an evaluation of supervisory comiments.

Pagegofg




INB.2 -~ Page 4

I
[#

Review job evaluation scores and identify the classification of
positions.

4.4 Schedule and conduct additionat follow-up with employees Tor jobs
where uncertainty exists over data obizined from job evaluation.

4.5 Pevelop prefiminary recommendations for the classification structure
anr diseuss with the CPM. The classification system designed at this
paint would be based solely on internatl equity relationships and would
be guided by the job evaluation scores for sach classification.
Essentiafly, a structure of classiftcations wowld be established, and
classifications with simifar scoring would be grouped and spacing
hetween jobs would be determined,

4.6 Bevelop recommendations of FLSA {exemption) status based oh
results of the job evaluation (JAT) review and federal requirements.

4.7 Review recommendations with the CPM,
KEY PROJECT MILESTONES

s Joh evaluation scores by class

¢ Recommended classification changes

s Preliminary job structurs based on internal eguity

Task 5.0 TASK GOALS

identify Approved

List of Banchmarks s |dentify positions t¢ benchmark for the market salary survey,
and Survey Targets

o ldentify and develop a comprehensive list of targets for conducting
a successful external labor market salary assessment.

TASK ACTIVITIES

5.1 identify the classifications that will be used as benchimarks for
the market salary survey. Note: Evergreen will work with the CPM
1o identify up to BO classifications 10 use as benchmarks for the
market salary survey. Note: Evergreen will collect information on
Ciounty Commissioner salaries.

52 Finalize the list of benchmark positions,
53 Develop a preliminary list of arganizations for the external tabor

markel survey, placing & comparative emphasis on
characteristics such as;

size of the organization;

geographic proximity to the Henford area;
economlc and budget characteristics; and
other demographic data.

s+ & &5 87

Page 4 0f 9




Task 6.0

Conduet Market
Salary Survey and
Brovide External
Assessment
Summary

Pagegofg

HB.2 - Page

5.4 Heview with the CPM up 1o 20 peer organizations that should be
included in the market salary survey,

5.5 Develop & system for use of secondary data, including potential
sources and weighting of secondary data, if necessary.

ol ) Review survey methodology with the CPM and refine survay
methodology prior to distribution of survey,

5.7 After approval of survey methodology, develop contact fist of peer
organizations and notify peers of impending survey.

KEY PROJECT MILESTONES
o Initial list of survey peers
e Strvey methodology

a  Final ist of survey arganizations and contacts

TASK GOALS
»  Conduct the external labor market salary survey.
o  Provide a summary of the survey residts 10 the CPM for review,
TASK ACTIVITIES
.1 Prepare a customized exiernal tabor market salary survey for the
CPM's approval. Discuss the questions to Include in the market
salary survey,

6.2 Contact the targets for electronic compietion of the stirvay,
Provide paper copies by fax, if requested.,

6.3 Conduct necessary Tollow-up through e-mails, faxes, and phone
salls,

6.4 Collect and enter survey resuits into Evergreen’s electronic data
analysis tools.

6.5 Validate ail data subrnitted.

6.5 Develop summary report of external labor market salaty survey
assessment rasults,

G.7 Submit semmary report of external labor market salary survey
assessment resulis 1o the CPM.

KEY PROJECT MILESTONES
o Market salary survey instrument

e Summary report of external labor market salary survey
assessment results

5




Task 7.0

Pavelop Strategic
Positioning
Recommendations

Task B.0
Conduct Solution
Analysis

Page G of g

IK.B2 - Page

TASK GOALS
# Determine the County’s compensation phitosophy.

= Develop a plan Tor all employees, providing issue areas and
preliminary recommendations Tor strategic improvement,

TASK ACTIVITIES

7.1 ldentify the accepted compensation phitosopty andg accompanying
threasholds.

7.2 Using the market salary survey data collected in Task 6.0, and
classification data reviewead in Task 4.0, determine the proper pay

plan/structure for positions using the 0% and 60" percentiles,
including County Commissionar positions.

7.3 Proaduce a revised or new pay plan{s) that best meets the needs of
the County from an extarnal equily standnoint.

KEY PROJECT MILESTONES

e Proposed compensation strategic direction, taking into account
axternal equily

«  Plan for addressing unique, highly competitive positions

TASK GOALS

s Conduct analysis comparing job evaluation values.

e Survey results for the benchmark positions.

¢ Produce several possible solutions for implementation.
TASK ACTIVITIES

821 Conduct regression analysis or other appropriate technigues to
proparly slot each classification into the proposed pay plan for the
County.

8.2 Place all classifications into pay grades based on Task Activity 8.1.
Sorl alphabetically by job class title, in descending order by rarnge,
and by oid class title and new class specifications.

8.3 Create implementation solutions for consideration that take into
account the current position of the County as well as the findings
fram the classification and compensation analysis. ldentify and
prepare a rahge of compensation pollcy alternatives,




Task 8.0
Develop Draft and
Final Reports

Page v of o

B2 - Page 7

2.4 Meat with the CPM o diseuss the potential solutions,

8.5 Determine the best solution 1o meet the needs of the County in the
short-term and longtenm.

8.6 Pocument the accepted solution.
KEY PROJECT MILESTONES

s Initizl regression analysis

s Potential solutions

» Documernted final solution

TASK GOALS

= Develop and submit a drafi and final report of the Classification
and/or Compensation Study to Perquimans County.

s Prasent final report,
TASK ACTMITIES
9.1 Produce a comprehensive dralt report that captures the results of
aach previous step, including a complete listing of the allocation of
jabr classes to salary range requirements. Provide the rapart te the
CPM for review that will include the costs associated with all
recommendations as well ag implamentation strategies.

9.2 Make edits and submit necessary copies of the final report o the
CPM.

9.3 Present the finaf repart.

9.4 Develop a communication plan for sharing study results with the
County's employees,

9.5 Develop a plan for maintaining recommendalions over tims.
KEY PROJECT MILESTONES

e Draft and final repors

= Final presentation

e  Communication plan




Task 10.0
Pavelop
Recommendations
for Compensation
Administration

Page 8 of g

IXB.2 - Page

TASK GOALS

Develop recommendations for & maintenance program so
administration by County staff may sustain the recommended
compansation system/structure,

Conduet training.

TASK ACTIVITIES

10.1

10.2

10.3

Develop recommendations and guidelines for continued
administration and maintenance of the compensation system,
including recommendations and guidelines related to:

» how employees will move through the pay structure/ system as a
regult of transfers, promotions, or demotions;

= how to pay employees whose hase pay has raached the
maximum of their pay range ot value of thelr position;

s the proper mix of pay;
¢ how often to acjust pay scales and survay the market;

= the timing of implementation; and

2

how to keep the system fair and competitive over time,
Finalize and present recommendations to the CPM for review.

Provide fraining and tools 0 Human Respurces Department staff to
ensure that siaff can conduct sudits/adjustments consistent with
study methods until the next formal study is conducted using
Evergreen's JobForce Manager tool that will enable Human
Rescurces staff to estimate future pay plan changes, update market
information, make determinations on reclassifications, and create
new jobs ~ allowing for streamlining, and an increase in fairness and
transparency of regular compensation and classification tasks after
solution implementation,

KEY PROJECT MILESTONES

@

Recommendations for compensation administration

Training on Evergreen's JobForce Manager tool

8



IM.B.Z2 - Page 3

Task 11.0 TASK GOALS
Provide Revised

Class Descriptions «  Update existing class descriptions.

e {reate new class descriptions qniy for those classifications
recommended by Evergrean as a result of the joby evaluation process.

«  Provide final version of all class descriptions/specifications in
alectronic format {Le., MS Word).

TASK ACTIVITIES

111 Assess curreant class descriptions for form, content, validity, and ADA.
FLSA, EEQ comipliance, etc.

11.2 Dissccugr?ﬁ any necessary changes to the class description format with
the CRM,

11.3  Update classification descriptions based on data gathered from the
job evaluation process,

11.4  Create new class descriptions gnly for these classifications
recommended by Evergreen as a result of the job evaluation process.

116 Recommend a systematic, regular process for reviewing job
descriptions,

KEY PROJECT MILESTONES

» tindated and new class descriptions, as needed

s Recommendations for regular review of class descriptions

Proposed Cost and Timeling

OQur total, not-to-excead, fixed cost to complete all tasks in our detailed work plan is $36,500. Our cost
s all Inclusive, and includes travel costs (meals and jodging}, transportation, fringe benefits, indirect cost
{overhead), clerical support, and all other out-ofpocket expenses. Evergreen can conduct this study in
approximately four months from the execution of a contract, Our cost ingludes two onsite visits to the
County as most of the work can be conducted virtually, Note: Should the County only desire 10 have &
campensation study conducted (i.e., Tasks 1, 2, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, and 10, our cost would be $25,500.

Qur preferred method of inveicing is as follows:

25% - upon completion of Tasks 1 - 2
25% -~ upon completion of Tagks 3 - 4
28% - upon completion of TAsks 5 ~ 6
15% - upon completion of Tasks 7 - 8
10% - upon completion of Tasks 9 - 11

2 8 &8 2 2

We would love the opportunity to work with Perquimans County. I you need any additionad infarmation,
please feal free to contact me at {850) 383-0111 or via emall at jeff@oensulleversres, oom,

Sincerely,

eﬁre L4 , PhD, President

Pagegof o




